# **The New Ensign** No. 69 May 2015

This publication is for private circulation only



# Calling The True Israel Peoples

## Editorial

Dear Reader,

#### 800th Anniversary of Magna Carta



Great celebrations are being planned throughout the UK and many other Common Law countries,

since this year it is the 800<sup>th</sup> anniversary of the signing of Magna Carta at Runnymede. Many are proclaiming it as 800 years of freedom, but is this so?

The City of London took advantage of the weakness of King John to gain extra privileges, which over time have been built upon to such an extent, that today, the City is the richest square mile on the face of the earth. Not only that, through its banking empire, it rules most of the world, the hub of which is the private Bank of England.

Since the founding of the Bank of England by William of Orange, it has, over time, through the manipulation of currency, enslaved the UK and virtually the whole world. From the time of Magna Carta to the setting up of the Bank of England, England was known as "Merry England" because people only needed to work 3 months per year to cover their needs. No doubt this is why the Jews refer to it as the "Dark Ages", as they were not able to make much of a living themselves through usury!

There is talk about replacing Magna Carta with a new one, known as a reset, which is no doubt a cunning ploy to remove and restrict our liberties even further.

Praise Yahweh, we know the enemy's time is running out, for the day fast approaches when they will be bundled up and burned.

#### Editor thenewensign@gmail.com

This magazine is for private subscription only and is not in any way connected to The Ensign Message Magazine which is a totally separate entity.

Contents	Page
Serious Questions - Part 2 - Arnold Kennedy	3
The Three-Headed Eagle of II Esdras 11 & 1 - Pastor Eli James	6
The "Jewish Question" in 15th and 16th Century Spain (Part 3) B. Chalmers	10
Was Churchill a "Holocaust Denier"? - T Stokes	14
Harold Stough Notes - Dunadd -	15
Are You Sleepwalking Into Armageddon?	16
The Bankruptcy Of The United States	17
Women Priests? - Pastor George Udvary	19
Five Reasons Why You Should Probably Stop Using Antibacterial Soap	22
The Holocaust Narrative: Politics Trumps Science - Jim Fetser	24
The Real Reason Wheat Is Toxic	29
Letters and Views	33
Penshurst Church and The Knights Templar - William Bolitho	36
Cloudbusting & Chemtrailing - T. Stokes	37
Sayings By And About Jews	38

## **Serious Questions - Part 2 Arnold Kennedy**



**QUESTION SEVEN** 

churches which Balaam, why then hold continue to and teach this doctrine?

This matter is the subject of 1 Cor. 10:8 which is stated as being given for an example. With 60 references by name as well as many indirect references, there should be no doubt as to what this doctrine is about.

Why seek to change this meaning of fornication from that of racial intermarriage?

In the New Testament the call is still to "Come ye out from among them and be ye separate...."-[2 Cor.6:17] "Touch" or haptomai here is a word used of carnal intercourse with a woman, like it or not -[confirm this in 1 Cor. 7:1-3]. The "them" in this verse are "unclean" people [not 'things' which is inserted as an added word] that are not to be "touched". "Unclean" or akathartos shows that there is a difference between 'clean' and 'unclean' people, with the clean not to 'touch' the unclean. The "yoke" in 2 Cor. 6:14 is with heterozugeo which means a different sort [Vine], or one who is not an equal [Thayer]. God also made clean and unclean animals and fish; each were born that way.

There is frequent reference to show that God's judgement is upon those of Israel who transgress by having this common carnal intercourse with other races. This shows up also through the New Testament. Jesus says in the Revelation that He holds it against the churches which hold the Doctrine of Balaam-[Rev.2:14]. From the 60 mentions of Balaam, what this doctrine is is guite clear. Because almost all denominations hold the doctrine of Balaam without knowing it, we can understand just why it is never taught. Probably few know what this doctrine is, but all should if Jesus holds it against them! 2 Peter 2:15

indicates that people with this doctrine have gone astray. Jude v11 calls it an error.

S Jesus says New Testament "fornication" has not changed He has it from what Old Testament fornication was, even against the if we like to try to say that *porneuo* has no racial connection today. In 1 Cor.10:8 we are told that hold the doctrine of all that is mentioned in this passage, are for examples to us. When we read what one example is, we find, "Neither let us commit fornication as some of them committed, and fell in one day three and twenty thousand". Look back to the Old Testament and find that what caused three and twenty thousand to die was Israelites having sex with non-Israelites-[Numbers 25:1-]. Moses even demanded that all Israelites who did this should be slain because of the idolatry that followed. King Solomon got caught this way and it also led to idolatry.

> We read of plagues in Israel because of this [Numbers 25:6-8]. Ezra 10 tells that divorce is demanded where "strange" or "nokriy" non-Israelite wives are concerned. See also Nehemiah 13:23-27. These things are written for our admonition we are told in 1 Cor. 10:11, but because of the popular but wrong doctrine to the contrary, this necessity for admonition is not accepted today. Jezebel [also a foreign wife] is permitted in the churches today even if Jesus says He holds it against the churches-[Rev.2:20]. What this means is that the New Testament doctrine about racial intermarriage is the same as that in the Old Testament. So, when did the doctrine change to the belief that God no longer requires Israel to dwell alone, not to intermarry with other races, and be separate from the other races? In context, the temptation that is common to man [the Israel man] is racial intermarriage, so why should Billy Graham or anyone else use it on new converts out of context?

#### **QUESTION EIGHT** WHY IGNORE ALL THE MULTITUDE **OF "ONE NATION" VERSES?**

2 Samuel 7, 23 "And what ONE NATION in the earth is like thy people, even like ISRAEL, whom God went to redeem A PEOPLE, and to make Himself a name."

Note the singular emphasis here, and that in both Testaments. Acts 10:36 says, "The Word redemption refers to this singular people alone. It is Israel alone who are stated to be the people God went to redeem. Galatians 4:5 and Hebrews 9:15 confirm that the mediation of the New Covenant was for the redemption of the transgressions that were under the First decree. Testament [Israel only]. See also Titus 2:14 and Luke 2:38. To redeem something means that it must have belonged once before, and so redemption can only apply to Israel.



Psalm 78:5 "For he established a testimony in Jacob, and a law in Israel, which he commanded our fathers".

This is another scripture confirming many along this line. But where can we find any scriptures giving even a suggestion that the Law and Covenants were given to other races? "Our fathers" and "the fathers" are common New Testament expressions. So, all these New Testament people being addressed must also be Israelites!

Psalm 147-19-20 "He hath showed His word unto JACOB, and His statutes unto ISRAEL, HE HATH NOT DEALT SO WITH ANY NATION, and as for his judgements, [they the other nations] have not known them".

This verse is both limiting and specific and relates exclusively to Israel as a race. Churches in our land that believe this are very few. The "word" here is "dabar", or the spoken word in the sense of a specific direction, charge, instruction or covenant. "Statutes" here is "choq" and Judgements is again "mishpat", as pointed out in the Deut.4:7 in question six.. This is a very clear statement, and note this spoken word is NOT given to other races! This is not a popular concept or popular teaching, but it is confirmed mentioned 549 times including 56 through the

which God sent to the Children of Israel". But if God declares "He hath not dealt so with any nation" we dare not question this, even if denominations ignore it. Israel is unique! The judgements are "mishpat"....or God's verdict or

#### **QUESTION NINE.** WHEN WE READ BIBLE STATISTICS, **ARE WE NOT JUSTIFIED IN SAYING** THE WHOLE BOOK IS PRIMARILY ADDRESSED TO ISRAEL?

Israel as "Yisra'el" 2,514 times [Old Testament]. "Israel" `70 times Israel as [New Testament]. Jacob [KJV]. 358 times [24 times in the New Testament]. Judah 813 times Ephraim 172 times Manesseh 143 times Hebrews 21 times Lord God of Israel 110 times God of Israel 90 times Holy One of Israel 31 times Lord God of the Hebrews 5 times Mighty God of Jacob 4 times Hope of Israel 2 times Congregation of Israel 160 times [as "qahal"]. "" " 173 times [as "edah"]. Assembly of Israel 21 times [as "atsarah"]. "Ekklesia" 116 times in the New Testament. Tribes [Shebet"] of Israel 190 times [Old Testament]. Tribes [Phule] of Israel 31 times [New Testament]. People of Israel 19 times [KJV]. My people 231 times.

Then we find expressions like, Israel's God, the Light of, the Rock of, the Redeemer of, the Stone of, the Shepherd of, the Portion of, the God of; all of which refer expressly to Israel. In the KJV we find the words:

#### "of Israel" occur 1,692 times! "to Israel" occur 23 times! "for Israel" occur 24 times!

Then there are expressions like the "The God of your fathers" and "fathers of Israel" ["fathers" is New Testament], so there is no doubt about the

sole race concerned because "pater" is a genetic term in context.

There is the intimate word "Jeshurun" for Israel. There are at least 5,000 direct references isolating Israel as a people. This personal God ISRAEL, Jehovah, ["Yehovah"] OF is mentioned 6,528 times by this name and 21 times as "Yahh".

#### **QUESTION TEN**

Why are we not taught exactly whom and whom only are gathered to God in the end?



Jer.50:6 says "My people hath been lost sheep. It was the "sheep" that Jesus says He came to give His life for-[John 10:15]. Jesus said, "I lay down my life for the sheep". He goes on to say these sheep are from both the Judean and the Dispersion folds. Sheep are born sheep. Goats are conceived as goats according to God's Law "after their kind". Tares come from tare seed. The tares are to be burned and the goats are to be separated. They cannot ever change how they were created. Paul contends, "Who are we to argue with God as to how the potter makes any vessel"-[Rom.9:21]. The "election" is made fathers." before "having done good or evil"-[Rom.9:11]. Election is not because of God's fore-knowledge of what a person was going to do in the future; this is what many try to say to get around the truth.

The gathering, or the re-gathering as it is often Acts 10:36 "The word which God sent unto the called is always presented in the Bible as being that of Israel. Jesus mourned over Jerusalem -[Matt.23:37] and His people whom He came to save ....not over any non-Israel race. Jesus gathers only His Elect nation - [Matt.24:29]. Jesus gathers "together in one the children of not dealt so with any nation..." Note the clear God that are scattered abroad"-[John 11:49-52]. Note that they are "God's children" before they Biblical! are gathered.

#### **QUESTION ELEVEN** WHO IS BEING ADDRESSED IN THE **BOOK OF ACTS? WHY TEACH SOMETHING DIFFERENT?**

The genetic fathers of Israel are mentioned in at least 20 verses through the book of Acts. These are the genetic 'fathers' of those being addressed. God as being the "God of OUR fathers" and "the God of Jacob is mentioned five times in the Book of Acts. In addition, consider the additional racially specific verses:

Acts 2:22 "Ye men of Israel, hear these words"

Acts 2:36 "Let all the House of Israel know assuredly...."

Acts 3:12 "Ye men of Israel why marvel ve at this..."

Acts 3:22-24 "For Moses truly said unto the fathers, a prophet shall the Lord God raise up unto you, of your brethren, like unto me"

The limitation to Israel is specific. "Unto you" means unto the Israelites being addressed. That denominations like to extend this to include all races does not make it valid. Note that this is post-Pentecost, and in this church age; so it is not in this age that anything changed, even if most say it did according to popular teachings. The "fathers" and "your brethren" are again racially selective and are definitive.

Acts 3:25 "Ye are the children of the prophets... and of the covenant which God made with our

This is a RACIAL statement! It concerns only one race. Scripture is not supposed to be racist according to popular doctrine, is it? So when could this have changed after the Book of Acts?

## Children of Israel..."

This confirms the Old Testament in Psalm 147:19 where we read, "He showeth His word unto Jacob, and His statutes unto Israel. He hath "not" in this verse. This also is racist, but it is our fathers".

scriptures confirming this racial selection. We cannot ignore the relationship between Israel, "our fathers" and the people being addressed. Acts 13: 32 "And we declare unto you the glad They are the same race.

Acts 13:23-24 "According to His promise raised up UNTO ISRAEL, a Saviour, Jesus..."

Acts 5:31 "To give repentance to ISRAEL", and forgiveness of sins".

This verse is one of many that say Jesus was raised up unto Israel. The original promise was made to Israel only. There are no statements at all extending this beyond "all men" of Israel in context. Again this is racial in purpose.

Acts 13:26 "Men and brethren, of the stock of Abraham .... is this word of salvation sent..."

Acts 13:17 "The God of this people Israel chose We do not find any stream of references about the word of salvation being sent to any but Israel. This is yet another racial statement; we cannot There are a multitude of Old Testament change the meaning of "stock" and its 'kin' connection.

> tidings, how that the promise which was made unto the fathers, God has fulfilled the same unto us their children ....".

> This is a straight genetic statement. The prophetical promise was made only to Israel. Who can really continue to pretend that Paul was speaking to non-Israelites [so-called Gentiles]? Paul goes on to tell about justification through Jesus "by which ye could not be justified by the Law of Moses", showing that he was speaking only to Israelites.

> > **To be Continued**

## The Three-Headed Eagle of II Esdras 11 & 12, **An Identity Interpretation**

By

## **Pastor Eli James**



Introductory Notes

will first quote the relevant passages from II Esdras 11, which gives the entire vision. Then, Chapter 12

gives an "interpretation," although we must still correlate the interpretation with historical events. What is discussed hereinafter comes from two main sources: Dr. Eugene Scott and James Scott Trimm. I will refer primarily to a transcription of a lecture given by Dr. Scott, plus minimal discussion of Mr. Trimm's viewpoint, which is similar, with the exception of the identification of the Three Heads.

2 Esdras 11:1; Then saw I a dream, and, behold, there came up from the sea an eagle, which had twelve feathered wings, and three heads.

11:2; And I saw, and, behold, she spread her wings over all the earth, and all the winds of the air blew on her, and were gathered together.

**11:3;** And I beheld, and out of her feathers there grew other contrary feathers; and they became little feathers and small.

**11:4;** But her heads were at rest: the head in the midst was greater than the other, yet rested it with the residue.

**11:5;** *Moreover I beheld, and, lo, the eagle flew* with her feathers, and reigned upon earth, and over them that dwelt therein.

11:6; And I saw that all things under heaven were subject unto her, and no man spake against her, no, not one creature upon earth.

11:7; And I beheld, and, lo, the eagle rose upon her talons, and spake to her feathers, saying,



**11:8;** Watch not all at once: sleep every one in his own place, and watch by course:

**11:9;** *But let the heads be preserved for the last.* 

**11:10;** And I beheld, and, lo, the voice went not out of her heads, but from the midst of her body.

11:11; And I numbered her contrary feathers, and, behold, there were eight of them.

**11:12**; And I looked, and, behold, on the right side there arose one feather, and reigned over all the earth; [This is the first feather, counting from right to left. – Eli]

11:13; And so it was, that when it reigned, the 11:27; And the second was sooner away than end of it came, and the place thereof appeared no more: so the next following stood up and reigned, and had a great time;

**11:14;** And it happened, that when it reigned, the end of it came also, like as the first, so that *it appeared no more.* 

11:15; Then came there a voice unto it, and said, greater than the two other heads.

11:16; Hear thou that hast borne rule over the 11:30; And then I saw that the two other heads earth so long: this I say unto thee, before thou were joined with it. beginnest to appear no more,

11:17; There shall none after thee attain unto them that were with it, and did eat up the two thy time, neither unto the half thereof.

[This second "feather" shall reign longer than any of the other "feathers," by twice the length of the next competitor. – Eli]

**11:18;** Then arose the third, and reigned as the other before, and appeared no more also.

**11:19;** So went it with all the residue one after another, as that every one reigned, and then appeared no more.

11:20; Then I beheld, and, lo, in process of time the feathers that followed stood up upon the right side, that they might rule also; and some of them ruled, but within a while they appeared no more:

**11:21;** For some of them were set up, but ruled not.

11:22; After this I looked, and, behold, the twelve feathers appeared no more, nor the two little feathers:

11:23; And there was no more upon the eagle's body, but three heads that rested, and six little wings.

**11:24**; Then saw I also that two little feathers divided themselves from the six, and remained under the head that was upon the right side: for the four continued in their place.

**11:25**; And I beheld, and, lo, the feathers that were under the wing thought to set up themselves and to have the rule.

11:26; And I beheld, and, lo, there was one set up, but shortly it appeared no more.

the first.

11:28; And I beheld, and, lo, the two that remained thought also in themselves to reign:

11:29; And when they so thought, behold, there awaked one of the heads that were at rest, namely, it that was in the midst; for that was

11:31; And, behold, the head was turned with feathers under the wing that would have reigned.

**11:32;** But this head put the whole earth in fear, and bare rule in it over all those that dwelt upon the earth with much oppression; and it had the governance of the world more than all the wings that had been.

**11:33;** And after this I beheld, and, lo, the head that was in the midst suddenly appeared no more, like as the wings.

**11:34;** But there remained the two heads, which also in like sort ruled upon the earth, and over those that dwelt therein.

**11:35;** And I beheld, and, lo, the head upon the right side devoured it that was upon the left side.

**11:36;** Then I head a voice, which said unto me, Look before thee, and consider the thing that thou sees

11:37; And I beheld, and lo, as it were a roaring lion chased out of the wood: and I saw that he sent out a man's voice unto the eagle, and said,

**11:38;** *Hear thou, I will talk with thee, and the Highest shall say unto thee,* 

**11:39;** Art not thou it that remainest of the four beasts, whom I made to reign in my world, that the end of their times might come through them?

**11:40;** And the fourth came, and overcame all the beasts that were past, and had power over the world with great fearfulness, and over the whole compass of the earth with much wicked oppression; and so long time dwelt he upon the earth with deceit.

**11:41**; For the earth hast thou not judged with truth.

11:42; For thou hast afflicted the meek, thou hast hurt the peaceable, thou hast loved liars, and destroyed the dwellings of them that brought forth fruit, and hast cast down the walls of such as did thee no harm.

The Cambridge Bible Commentary ON THE NEW ENGLISH BIBLE The First and Second Books of **DESCRETARY** B. COOGDING AND M. A. KNIER

**11:43;** Therefore is thy wrongful dealing come up unto the Highest, and thy pride unto the Mighty.

**11:44;** The Highest also hath looked upon the proud times, and, behold, they are ended, and his abominations are fulfilled.

**11:45;** And therefore appear no more, thou eagle, nor thy horrible wings, nor thy wicked feathers nor thy malicious heads, nor thy hurtful claws, nor all thy vain body:

**11:46;** That all the earth may be refreshed, and may return, being delivered from thy violence, and that she may hope for the judgment and mercy of him that made

#### II Esdras 12, The "Interpretation"

**12:1;** And it came to pass, while the lion {The lion represents the Messiah at the Judgment Day.} spake these words unto the eagle, I saw,

**12:2;** And, behold, the head that remained and the four wings appeared no more, and the two went unto it and set themselves up to reign, and their kingdom was small, and fill of uproar.

{Keep this verse in mind, because it is overlooked by both Dr. Scott and James Trimm.}

**12:3;** And I saw, and, behold, they appeared no more, and the whole body of the eagle was burnt so that the earth was in great fear: then awaked I out of the trouble and trance of my mind, and from great fear, and said unto my spirit,

**12:4;** *Lo, this hast thou done unto me, in that thou searchest out the ways of the Highest.* 

**12:5;** *Lo, yet am I weary in my mind, and very weak in my spirit; and little strength is there in me, for the great fear wherewith I was afflicted this night.* 

**12:6;** *Therefore will I now beseech the Highest, that he will comfort me unto the end.* 

**12:7;** *And I said, Lord that bearest rule, if I have* found grace before thy sight, and if I am justified with thee before many others, and if my prayer indeed be come up before thy face;

12:8; Comfort me then, and shew me thy servant the interpretation and the plain difference of this *fearful vision, that thou mayest perfectly comfort* my soul.

12:9; For thou hast judged me worthy to shew me the last times.

This tells us that the fulfillment of this vision will take us very close to the Judgment Day.}

12:10; And he said unto me, This is the interpretation of the vision:



12:11; The eagle, whom thou sawest come up from the sea, is the kingdom which was seen in the vision of thy brother Daniel.

{For a good analysis of the relationship between Daniel's vision versus Ezra's, see this item:

http://preterism.ning.com/forum/topics/acomparison-of-the-fourth.

Essentially the ten horns of Daniel are the Ten Horns of Revelation. In both cases, these are the Ten Nation-States that formed the second half of the Sixth Beast. These ten nations or tribes were the 1. Franks, 2. Huns, 3. Vandals, 4. Visigoths, 5. Ostrogoths, 6. Alans (and Sueves), 7. Burgundians, 8. Odoacer's Italian kingdom of 12:21; And two of them shall perish, the middle several tribes, 9. Saxons, 10. Lombards.

This is a reference to nations/tribes that would eventually become the Holy Roman Empire. The "Little Horn" is the Papacy, which came to rule over these ten provinces/horns. From 800 AD to about 1800, the Popes crowned Europe's Emperors. This practice ended with Napoleon.}

12:12; But it was not expounded unto him, therefore now I declare it unto thee.

{Ezra is being given more details which were not given to Daniel.}

12:13; Behold, the days will come, that there shall rise up a kingdom upon earth, and it shall be feared above all the kingdoms that were before it. {I believe this is talking about the Holy Roman Empire, from which the twelve in Verse 14 sprang.

12:14; In the same shall twelve kings reign, one after another:

This is not necessarily talking about the whole HERE. It is merely talking about the last twelve kings, which were part of the continuing Empire.}

12:15; Whereof the second shall begin to reign, and shall have more time than any of the twelve.

12:16; And this do the twelve wings signify, which thou sawest.

12:17; As for the voice which thou heardest speak, and that thou sawest not to go out from the heads but from the midst of the body thereof, this is the interpretation:

**12:18;** That after the time of that kingdom there shall arise great strivings, and it shall stand in peril of failing: nevertheless it shall not then fall, but shall be restored again to his beginning.

12:19; And whereas thou sawest the eight small under feathers sticking to her wings, this is the interpretation:

**12:20;** *That in him there shall arise eight kings,* whose times shall be but small, and their years swift.

time approaching: four shall be kept until their end begin to approach: but two shall be kept unto the end.

12:22; And whereas thou sawest three heads 12:29; And whereas thou sawest two feathers resting, this is the interpretation:

12:23; In his last days shall the most High raise up three kingdoms, and renew many things therein, and they shall have the dominion of the earth.

{These three kingdoms, together, shall rule over the earth.}

12:24; And of those that dwell therein, with much 12:31; And the lion, whom thou sawest rising up oppression, above all those that were before them: therefore are they called the heads of the eagle.

**12:25;** *For these are they that shall accomplish* his wickedness, and that shall finish his last end.

{In other words, the succession of empires that *them with their cruelty*. began with Rome and its imitators will finally be brought to an end.}

**12:26;** And whereas thou sawest that the great head appeared no more, it signifieth that one of them shall die upon his bed, and yet with pain.

12:27; For the two that remain shall be slain with the sword

12:28; For the sword of the one shall devour the other: but at the last shall he fall through the sword himself.

under the wings passing over the head that is on the right side;

12:30; It signifieth that these are they, whom the Highest hath kept unto their end: this is the small kingdom and full of trouble, as thou sawest.

{This small kingdom will be positively identified herein.}

out of the wood, and roaring, and speaking to the eagle, and rebuking her for her unrighteousness with all the words which thou hast heard:

12:32; This is the anointed, which the Highest hath kept for them and for their wickedness unto the end: he shall reprove them, and shall upbraid

12:33; For he shall set them before him alive in judgment, and shall rebuke them, and correct them.

12:34; For the rest of my people shall he deliver with mercy, those that have been pressed upon my borders, and he shall make them joyful until the coming of the day of judgment, whereof I have spoken unto thee from the beginning.

To be continued

## The "Jewish Question" in 15th and 16th Century **Spain (Part 2) Brian Chalmers**



## A Tradition of Biased Scholarship

S already noted, Prof. Kagan attributes Netanyahu's passion for polemics to the trauma of the Holocaust tragedy suffered by Jews during the Second World War. Actually, there is a very long tradition of Jewish scholarship that deliberately distorts the historical record to further Jewish group interests. Not only does Netanyahu carry on this tradition of slanted scholarship in his own work, he also exonerates the New Christian historians who systematically did the same.

For example, one Converso historian went to great lengths to remove explicit references to tax collectors as "infidels and heretics" because contemporary readers would identify them as New Christians. "That this was the sole intent," writes Netanyahu, "and that he was ready to go to any length to fulfil it by altering, mutilating and abbreviating the original, and also by deleting whole passages ... is evident from his whole revision of the manuscript and the careful thought he gave to every expression that might cast a shadow of disrepute on the conversos" (p. 635).



Netanyahu regards such distortion of the historical record as morally and intellectually justified (pp. 660-661

):

Their "falsification" of the records could appear to them, in their overall considerations, as the presentation of the inner truth of history, while the fuller and ostensibly truthful presentation could be judged by them as leading to misunderstandings and hence to distortion of the basic facts ... Obviously such a form of revision would involve a flagrant distortion of the truth. But historical truth was less important in their eyes than the consequences it entailed for the welfare of their group.

In other words, a truthful account would have described in detail the charges of heresy made by the Old Christians against the New Christians. But such an account might lead Old Christians to believe that the charges were true, and, because this awareness would have had undesirable consequences, the New Christian chroniclers were justified in their deception. Moreover, writes Netanyahu, such New Christian historians were justified in their distortion of the record because they "believed [not only] that the Marranos, or their overwhelming majority, were free from the

execrable crime of heresy, but [also] that their accusers, too were well aware of this" (p. 660)

Both these claims are doubtful. Minimally, the proposal that the Old Christians did not believe their own charges is highly unlikely, given the human tendency to assume the worst about one's perceived enemies. For Netanyahu, however, putting group interests above truth is itself an acceptable standard of veracity for these New Christian historians. So justifiable does Netanyahu find such deception that one can only suppose that he applies this same standard in his own work.

#### **Historical Evidence Ignored**

Like the 15th-century chroniclers who falsified their work by omitting crucial details, Netanyahu does not mention recent scholarship indicating that the New Christians were a religiously diverse group that included a substantial percentage of crypto-Jews. In a critical review of Netanyahu's book, professor David Berger of Brooklyn College writes: "It is hardly an exaggeration to say that an entire generation of recent scholarship goes unrepresented here." Berger goes on to write that "this book is marked by a degree of confidence unjustified by the nature of the sources," and that the author engages in a "reconstruction of motives and intentions based on slim evidence."

Perhaps most egregiously, Netanyahu places no weight on the fact that over the long life of the Inquisition many New Christians (re-)assumed overt Jewish identities after they emigrated from Spain. Historian Howard Fast writes admiringly: During the next two hundred years, the boldest, the toughest, and the most sensitive of the Marranos left Spain. They left family by family, some openly, some secretly, but in almost every case, these Marranos, some of whose families had been outwardly Christian for several hundred years, underwent circumcision and returned to the Jewish fold the moment they were out of the Inquisition's power.

When Netanyahu does mention this phenomenon, his main point is to assert that it was unreasonable for 15th-century Spaniards to infer that the Converso relatives (in Spain) of crypto-Jews who had assumed overtly Jewish identities after emigration were themselves crypto-Jews (p. 945). Netanyahu holds 15thcentury Spaniards to a very high standard of environmental and educational - that had proof indeed! - that had influenced Jewish life for centuries. These were

In this same passage (p. 945), Netanyahu states that it is "hardly surprising" that emigrating New Christians assumed overt Jewish identities, given the hostility they had experienced in Spain. But if this hostility was so intense that it motivated emigrating New Christians to openly proclaim Judaism after leaving the country, it is only reasonable to suppose that this same fervent hostility would motivate those who remained in Spain to be crypto-Jews, rather than sincerely embrace the Christian faith. How can Netanyahu logically suppose that the New Christians who remained in Spain were any more sincere in their Christianity than their emigrating brethren?

#### **A Distinct Nationality**

A critical point here is that Netanyahu attaches no moral importance to a key fact about 15thcentury Spain - that the New Christians, whatever their religious beliefs, constituted a highly successful and even dominating group within Spanish society. All scholars of the period, including Netanyahu, agree that the New Christians remained throughout a clearly distinguishable group, one with high levels of within-group cooperation and patronage, and quite self-aware of its particular status. This "groupness" of the Conversos was independent of whether they secretly regarded themselves as Jews.

Netanyahu deserves praise for providing massive detail about both the group cohesiveness of the New Christians as well as for showing the economic and social roots of the animosity of the Old Christians. In this regard he is well within the mainstream of historical research. Throughout the period of the Inquisition, both in the Iberian peninsula and the New World, the New Christians were organized as a set of intermarrying and interlocking family clans characterized by high levels of within-group cooperation and patronage in pursuit of economic and political goals.

Netanyahu's description of the "peoplehood" of the New Christians is quite accurate and bears quoting at length (pp. 993-994, 995, 996):

Yet while the convert abandoned his people, his peoplehood did not abandon him. It was reflected in many of his characteristics, the product of numerous factors - ethnic, social,

environmental and educational - that had influenced Jewish life for centuries. These were essentially Jewish characteristics; and although assimilation had somewhat dimmed them, they could still be discerned in the Jewish convert even decades after his conversion.

... When masses of Jews were converted at the same time, each of them saw himself within his people and by no means as one who had forsaken it. In Spain, where these converts or their great majority lived for many years in boroughs of their own, this feeling of communion was kept alive as long as the process of assimilation had not destroyed, or seriously affected, the collective fabric.



**Edict to Remove Jews From Spain** 

Also many characteristics of the Jew and his life-style, which even isolated converts retained for many years, were guarded for much larger periods in the converso communities. As a result, the converso could still be recognized - even several generations after his ancestors' conversion - by his Jewish appearance, his habits and mannerisms, his attitudes and reactions, as well as his views on a variety of issues. In consequence, in the middle of the 15th century (and no doubt in many cases even later) the great majority of the New Christians in Spain had not yet shaken off the shadow of their past; and the result of this fact was the consciousness of their "otherness" that determined the attitude of their neighbours ...

The Marranos were viewed as a distinct nationality which, in more ways than one, was related to the Jews. Indeed, not only did their enemies so regard them, but also their friends among the Old Christians; and, what is more, they were so regarded by the Marranos themselves ... As a "nation apart," despite their conversion, as a nation united by common origin or race, the Marranos were thus exposed to the evaluation of their group as an alien national entity, whose fellowships with the people of the country must be questioned, and whose preparedness to betray it could be taken as likely even by moderate adversaries. [italics in text] Beyond this very clear realization that the New Christians retained their sense of peoplehood and ethnicity, as well their sense of constituting a group within Spanish society, separate Netanyahu does not deny that there was a hard core of self-consciously crypto-Jews among the New Christians prior to the Inquisition. "That there were some Jewish pockets among the Marranos in the sixties [1460s], and probably in the seventies too, may be taken for granted," he writes. (p. 931). Indeed, another point of unanimity among the 15th-century New Christian apologists and their opponents is the acknowledgment that at least some among the Conversos had retained Jewish religious beliefs (p. 625).

Given the prevailing outlook of the period, and the hostile nature of inter-group relations, the realization that some Conversos were really crypto-Jews could well be expected to bring sanctions against the entire group of Conversos - especially because, while it was known that at least some were deceivers, it was very difficult to determine what people believed in their hearts. Netanyahu's moral censure of the Inquisitors is based on an individualistic moral sense that was entirely foreign to the sensibility not only of corporate Medieval society but even more to traditional Judaism. New Christians perceived themselves and were perceived by others as members of an alien and detested group within Spanish society. As one might expect, Spaniards tended to "assume the worst" about them, especially when it was well known that, among other things, emigrating New Christians rapidly assumed overt Jewish identities in other lands.

#### **Economic and Political Power**

Netanyahu has done a service in identifying the social, economic and political sources of intergroup conflict that were critical in the establishment of the Inquisition. "Indubitably," he acknowledges, "the factor that first put much strain on the relations between the Old Christians and the New was the growth of converso economic power" (p. 1044)

He also provides considerable detail on the extent of Converso economic and political domination of Spain's traditional Christians. In so doing Netanyahu goes a long way toward

showing why, apart from any question of religious heresy, the Conversos were so widely hated by the non-noble classes or estates. Conversos emerged as a dominant force in the areas of finance, commerce, international trade, law, diplomacy, and all levels of public administration. Wealthy Conversos purchased and endowed ecclesiastical benefices for their children with the result that many members of the high clergy were of Jewish descent. And high level New Christian officeholders (such as Fernán Díaz, secretary to King Juan II) appointed fellow Conversos to positions throughout the government bureaucracy.



In his 1932 study, A History of the Marranos, Cecil Roth summed up the incredible situation in forthright language that would scarcely be permitted today:

The Law, the administration, the army, the universities, the Church itself, were all overrun by recent converts of

more or less questionable sincerity, or by their immediate descendents. They thronged the financial administration, for which they had a natural aptitude, protest now being impossible. They pushed their way into the municipal councils, into the legislatures, into the judiciary. They all but dominated Spanish life.

#### To be Continued



## Was Churchill a "Holocaust Denier"? T. Stokes



It has long been assumed that the Churchill archives at Cambridge had been edited, giving a sanitized account that glossed over much of recent history. However, against all the rules, thousands of pages of minutes have been saved in their original state, which present a drastically different version of events.

The wartime assistant to the deputy secretary to the war cabinet, 1939-1945, Laurence Burgis, took notes of crucial and often historic cabinet meetings. These papers contain much that was later "deleted" or "sanitized "as Churchill insisted that notes on the meetings were to be burnt in the grate.

By keeping these authentic notes until his death in 1971 Burgis, could have been prosecuted under the 1911 official secrets act and imprisoned, or even shot as a 5th columnist.

The notes contain mentions of Pearl Harbour, Churchill's naivety over Stalin and his socialist atrocities, and Churchill's general political and military ineptitude.

No mention occurs as in Soviet notes of Churchill's alcohol dependence or his regularly sleeping through the day.

Among other things the papers confirm that even under drugs and torture, Rudolph Hess never divulged the names of those in the British war cabinet and royal family who wanted to accept a peace deal with Hitler.

Churchill condoned the Soviet rape squads sent into Germany at the wars end and helped Stalin hide the Soviet Katyn Forest murders, like Stalin, blaming the Germans for the crime.

Hess wanted the truth told of this and civilians guaranteed safety.

On Churchill's orders the S.O.E murdered Reinhardt Heydrich in order to bring reprisals on the Czech's and thereby harden their resolve against Germany.

The papers reveal that Churchill joked about the huge bombing raids on defenceless German dormitory towns.

Sir Anthony Blunt said that as the war was closing, Churchill did not want to feed or house large numbers of German refugees, and preferred them burnt in their homes.

It has been suggested by the Bletchley code breaker John Burrows, that the universally unpopular General Montgomery was pushed into taking on Rommel in North Africa, by threats of exposure of his bizarre sexuality.

Moreover Montgomery's victories were secured largely by the Enigma code breaker, which was used to decipher German signals. A fact confirmed by Sir Harold Scott and super-spy and Stalin apologist, Sir Anthony Blunt, and in off the cuff remarks by Churchill's bodyguard, Walter Thomson.

Also mentioned is Churchill's wish to murder Ghandi, who was against the violence of the war. Churchill, through the banker Juan March, Chamberlain, who was adamant that war with secretly bribed General Franco and his generals with millions of dollars, not to side with Hitler in W.W.II, and Britain remained silent over the Stalin backed socialist atrocities in the civil war.

Strangely, in view of the current depiction of the Holocaust by Hollywood, the papers make no mention of the plight of the Jewish people held by Germany.

Just as British intelligence files, the Russian archives, the Red Cross and the R.A.M.C make no mention of what we now know as the Holocaust.

Churchill, who changed parties 4 times in his career, and discussed it several more times, was held in such low esteem at the House of Commons, that he was called "the shithouse" as an abbreviation of his initials W.C.

Hitler was avoidable, had said that Britain was the greatest sea power at the time and if Hitler planned a war with Britain he would have built up his navy, but he did not as he believed Britain would stay out of the conflict.

Russian spy Ursula Kuczinsky, codenamed "Sonja" serviced Oxford during W W II and claimed Chamberlain was murdered by Churchill after he accepted 50,000 pounds from the Rothschild syndicate to take the country to war.

In much the same way that Lord Levy is rumoured to have bribed Tony Blair to take Britain to war with Iraq.

Both must be numbered among Britain's greatest traitors.

The End OS21958

## **Harold Stough Notes**

## **Dunadd The Ancient King Seat And Capital Of The Kingdom Of Dalraidia (Dal Riata)**

HE ANCIENT KING SEAT OF **DUNADD** - capital of the kingdom of Dalraidia (Dal Riata) - rises out of the barren flatness of Crinan Moss, the raised bog floodplain of the meandering River Add. This rocky outcrop was the power base of the Scotti tribe, who invaded from Ireland around the 5th century AD. The tribe were eventually to give Scotland its name, and evidence suggests a rich cultural heritage of fine craftsmanship and trading throughout Dark Age Europe.

Archaeological excavations show that there has been a fort on this site from the Iron Age period, but the site is most famous as being the stronghold of the Scotti tribe and centre of the Kingdom of Dalradia (Dal Riata). The Scotti tribe were invaders from Ireland in the 5th and 6th centuries AD, their culture flowering between 6th and 10th centuries AD.



Archaeological evidence points to Dunnad as a key power base and trading centre, as potshards have been discovered which originate from mainland Europe. It seems that they were also in contact with other centres of power most notable those in Northumberland. It has been suggested that Dunadd may have been the "head of the region" described in Adomnan's Life of Columbus, where the saint met sailors who hailed from Gaul. Finds also show that the

population were in contact with the Christian centre at Iona.

Traces of precious metal debris has led historians to conclude that there was an important metal smiths workshop within the fortress, probably producing fine jewellery for the elite tribe members, as well as trade goods and weaponry. Among the various archaeological finds were many moulds for elaborate jewellery and a number of smelting crucibles.

The site must have been well fortified during its occupation, consisting of a number of terraces reinforced with dry stone walling, which would have been surmounted with timber palisades. The first terrace is guarded by a narrow cleft between the rocks, which would have been easy to guard when reinforced with timber. It is likely that terraced forts such as Dunadd, were separated into levels according to social rank and status, with the chief or lord living on the top level in the enclosed Citadel.

One of the most interesting features about the site are the series of carvings on the exposed rock on the lower summit plateaux. These include a faded image of a boar, a shallow round depression in which water collects, and a small-carved footprint.

There are also a series of undecipherable ogham scripts running along two of the split bedding planes and cracks that dissect the rock. The real purpose of all these carving is unknown, but we can assume that they were used during inauguration ceremonies of kingship in pagan times, which may have carried over into the Christian period. Stone carvings are difficult to date, possibly even dating as far back as the Iron Age when the fort was first in use.



According to local legend the Celtic hero Ossian left the footprint, when he strode across the hilltops from Rhudil to Dunnadd.

Directions: Signposted off the A816 three and a half miles South from Kilmartin.

#### The End OS21962

## Are You Sleepwalking Into Armageddon? Bernard Franklin



**T IS BEING REPORTED** that around one percent of the richest people now own half of the world's wealth, and the disparity is growing by the month. Rising prices and reduced wages are forcing a large percentage of Americans to do three jobs just to get by. In September 2014 a woman doing three jobs was forced to sleep in her car to ensure that she arrived for her shifts in time. To make sure she

didn't run out of petrol she carried a can of fuel in the boot. While asleep the petrol caught fire and she was burnt alive. This caused demonstrations in four US states, with workers demanding a living wage. Unfortunately the companies that get away with paying pathetically low wages are in league with the US government.

Western governments give the impression that they struggle from one crisis to the next. This is not the case at all. They invent policies that will create problems for the masses. It is decades before the public becomes aware of them. It is known by governments that extreme poverty and the likelihood of a financial crisis will create a severe food shortage. This is expected to lead to free-for-all battles in supermarkets and high streets. Senior politicians know that at this point law and order will break down. This will cause many decent and industrious families to move into the countryside with the intention of massive scale will be available. The kind of providing for themselves and growing their own varieties that a grower on a small farm needs will crops.

Plans were laid decades ago to make this impossible. The EU and American bio-tech companies prevented the public from obtaining seeds from the original plant types back in the 1980's. Hybrid seeds are the only ones which have been generally available since. It is not possible to grow another crop from the seeds of hybrid plants. The crazy people that we allowed to take control of plant seeds will soon only give out licences to grow crops to those who support them. Further to this each kind of vegetable seed is being tested at punitive costs. This means that only varieties that are suitable for growing on a

become obsolete.

Many thinking men and women have known of this evil anti-Christ plan since the 1980's. Barry Smith the New Zealand "born-again Christian travelled extensively broadcasting this information in his lectures. It is sad to realise how this great man has been forgotten so soon, even in his own homeland. Yet the public never forgets the moronic idols of the entertainment industry. There will be no hope for the human race until it learns to get its priorities right.

#### The End OS29140

## The Bankruptcy Of The United States **United States Congressional Record,** March 17, 1993 Vol. 33, page H-1303



Speaker-Rep. James Traficant, Jr. (Ohio) addressing the House:

r. Speaker, we are here now in chapter 11. Members

of Congress are official trustees presiding over the greatest reorganization of any Bankrupt entity in world history, the U.S. Government. We are setting forth hopefully, a blueprint for our future. There are some who say it is a coroner's report that will lead to our demise.

It is an established fact that the United States Federal Government has been dissolved by the Emergency Banking Act, March 9, 1933, 48 Stat. 1, Public Law 89-719; declared by President Roosevelt, being bankrupt and insolvent. H. J. R. 192, 73rd Congress mid session June 5, 1933-Joint Resolution To Suspend The Gold Standard and Abrogate The Gold Clause dissolved the Sovereign Authority of the United States and the official capacities of all United States Governmental Offices. Officers. and Departments and is further evidence that the United States Federal Government exists today in name only.

The receivers of the United States Bankruptcy are the International Bankers, via the United Nations, the World Bank, and the International Monetary Fund. All United States Offices, Officials, and Departments are now operating within a de facto status in name only under Emergency War Powers. With the Constitutional Republican form of Government now dissolved, the receivers of the Bankruptcy have adopted a new form of government for the United States. This new form of government is known as a Democracy, being established an Socialist/Communist order under a new governor for America. This act was instituted and established by transferring and/or placing the Office of the Secretary of Treasury to that of the Governor of the International Monetary Fund. Public Law 94-564, page 8, Section H. R. 13955 reads in part: 'The U.S. Secretary of Treasury receives no compensation for representing the United States?'

Gold and silver were such a powerful money, during the founding of the united states of America, that the founding fathers declared that only gold or silver coins can be "money" in America. Since gold and silver coinage was heavy and inconvenient for a lot of transactions, they were stored in banks and a claim check was issued as a money substitute. People traded their coupons as money, or "currency." Currency is not money, but a money substitute. Redeemable



currency must promise to pay a dollar equivalent in gold or silver money. Federal Reserve Notes (FRNs) make no such promises, and are not "money." A Federal Reserve Note is a debt obligation of the federal United States government, not "money?" The federal United States government and the U.S. Congress were not and have never been authorized by the Constitution for the united states of America to issue currency of any kind, but only lawful money, - gold and silver coin.

It is essential that we comprehend the distinction between real money and paper money substitute. One cannot get rich by accumulating money substitutes; one can only get deeper into debt. We the People no longer have any "money." Most Americans have not been paid any "money" for a very long time, perhaps not in their entire life. Now do you comprehend why you feel broke? Now, do you understand why you are "bankrupt," along with the rest of the The Federal Reserve System is a sovereign country?

Federal Reserve Notes (FRNs) are unsigned checks written on a closed account. FRNs are an inflatable paper system designed to create debt through inflation (devaluation of currency). Whenever there is an increase of the supply of a money substitute in the economy without a corresponding increase in the gold and silver interest, or premiums are the same. backing, inflation occurs.

Inflation is an invisible form of taxation that irresponsible governments inflict on their citizens. The Federal Reserve Bank who controls the supply and movement of FRNs has everybody fooled. They have access to an unlimited supply of FRNs, paying only for the printing costs of what they need. FRNs are nothing more than promissory notes for U.S. Treasury securities (T-Bills) - a promise to pay the debt to the Federal Reserve Bank.

There is a fundamental difference between "paying" and "discharging" a debt. To pay a debt, you must pay with value or substance (i.e. United States to the Board of Governors of the

gold, silver, barter or a commodity). With FRNs, you can only discharge a debt. You cannot pay a debt with a debt currency system. You cannot service a debt with a currency that has no backing in value or substance. No contract in Common law is valid unless it involves an exchange of "good & valuable consideration." Unpayable debt transfers power and control to the sovereign power structure that has no interest in money, law, equity, or justice because they have so much wealth already.

Their lust is for power and control. Since the inception of central banking, they have controlled the fates of nations.

The Federal Reserve System is based on the Canon law and the principles of sovereignty protected in the Constitution and the Bill of Rights. In fact, the international bankers used a "Canon Law Trust" as their model, adding stock and naming it a "Joint Stock Trust." The U.S. Congress had passed a law making it illegal for any legal "person" to duplicate a "Joint Stock Trust" in 1873. The Federal Reserve Act was legislated post-facto (to 1870), although postfacto laws are strictly forbidden by the Constitution. [1:9:3]

power structure separate and distinct from the federal United States government. The Federal Reserve is a maritime lender, and/or maritime insurance underwriter to the federal United States operating exclusively under Admiralty/Maritime law. The lender or underwriter bears the risks, and the Maritime law compelling specific performance in paying the

Assets of the debtor can also be hypothecated (to pledge something as a security without taking possession of it.) as security by the lender or underwriter. The Federal Reserve Act stipulated that the interest on the debt was to be paid in gold. There was no stipulation in the Federal Reserve Act forever paying the principle.

Prior to 1913, most Americans owned clear, allodial title to property, free and clear of any liens or mortgages until the Federal Reserve Act (1913)

"Hypothecated" all property within the federal

Federal Reserve, in which the Trustees This has been going on for over eighty years (stockholders) held legal title. The U.S. citizen without the "informed knowledge" of the (tenant, franchisee) was registered as a American people, without a voice protesting "beneficiary" of the trust via his/her birth loud enough. Now it is easy to grasp why certificate. In 1933, the federal United States hypothecated all of the present and future properties, assets, and labour of their "subjects," the 14th Amendment U.S. citizen, to the Federal Reserve System.

In return, the Federal Reserve System agreed to extend the federal United States Corporation all the credit "money substitute" it needed. Like any other debtor, the federal United States government had to assign collateral and security to their creditors as a condition of the loan. Since the federal United States did not have any assets, they assigned the private property of their "economic slaves" the U.S. citizens as collateral against the unpayable federal debt. They also pledged the unincorporated federal territories, national parks forests, birth certificates, and non-profit organizations, as collateral against the federal debt. All has already been transferred as payment to the international bankers.

Unwittingly, America has returned to its pre-American Revolution, feudal roots whereby all land is held by a sovereign and the common people had no rights to hold allodial title to property. Once again, 'We the People' are the tenants and sharecroppers renting our own property from a Sovereign in the guise of the Federal Reserve Bank. We the people have *Pharaohs* By Andrew Power exchanged one master for another.

America is fundamentally bankrupt.

Why don't more people own their properties outright?

Why are 90% of Americans mortgaged to the hilt and have little or no assets after all debts and liabilities have been paid? Why does it feel like you are working harder and harder and getting less and less?

We are reaping what has been sown, and the results of our harvest are a painful bankruptcy, and a foreclosure on American property, precious liberties, and a way of life. Few of our elected representatives in Washington, D.C. have dared to tell the truth. The federal United States is bankrupt. Our children will inherit this unpayable debt, and the tyranny to enforce paying it.

America has become completely bankrupt in world leadership, financial credit, and its reputation for courage, vision, and human rights. This is an undeclared economic war, bankruptcy, and economic slavery of the most corrupt order! Wake up America! Take back your Country."

With Acknowledgement to Ireland Land of The The End OS21963

## Women Priests? Bv The Late Pastor Udvary



THE CURRENT liberal hysteria that has permeated Christian churches in the past decade or so, agrees that it is right to ordain women as

ministers, priests or preachers. The pressure for this change has come primarily from civil rights and women's organizations-E.R.A. enthusiasts and other feminist groups. Their slogans and agitations are bolstered by socialist and leftist ideology groups, which in reality are, social communist sympathizers. Americans tend to be naively gullible, especially the American Christian woman.

These groups use the argument that women are abused sex objects, who are sentenced by marriage to boredom, homemaking and childraising. There is even a new television series

entitled: "Desperate Housewives." What they do not tell the American woman today, is that she is the most highly esteemed, freest, richest, most educated, most protected, and certainly has the most technologically advanced products to make her job easier than ever before in history. To the uninformed, this may sound like an unfounded accusation, but it is true. In non-Christian countries like the Muslim nations and some of the expanding communist world, women are still held in the lowest regard. In secret, they idolize the western American women for their better roles in life.

America's women have been challenged to be infant Jesus, as the Messiah. These records like men. They have been encouraged to compete in every phase of industry, including highly physical tasks like firefighting, mining, construction, and even the military. It is one situation for a woman to work next to a man at any job she can handle, but to ensconce herself into the priesthood is questionable. Not according to Yahweh, but Paul of Tarsus, who set down strict rules and limited woman's rights in the church (see First Corinthians and First Timothy). On the other hand, uni-sexism is just an attempt to destroy the family, the very structure and moral fibre of this nation.

"For the man is not of the woman; but the woman of the man. Neither was the man created for the woman; but the woman for the man: . . .but all things of Yahweh" (1 Cor. 11:8,9,12). This simply means that a woman is not to be a teaching-preaching minister or priest of the church, if that position is ranked over men. The responsible position belongs to an ordained man, but in all other areas of church life, theoretically a woman can contribute her abilities without 2.) In Acts 2:14-21 and Joel 2:28-31, God censure. The scriptures must be obeyed. Violation of Yahweh's laws leads to punishment for those who rebel, even when an entire nation is involved.

It is a little known biblical fact that in the Old Testament times, a few select Israelite women have had high-ranking positions. Miriam was the first woman prophetess, and the sister of Aaron and Moses. Deborah was the only woman judge over Israel and even a war leader. Huldah was a prophetess and the wife of Shallum the son of Tikvah, the son of I larhas, keeper of the wardrobe (for King Josiah).

Micah the prophet, also gave us an important 12:11-18, Lev. 27). prophecy. In Micah 4, he predicted that in the

latter days and in the last battle, the daughters of true Israel will play a big roll to "thresh" the Antichrist enemy (Mic. 4:13).



In the New Testament (Luke 2:36-38), we read about Anna, the prophetess, from the tribe of Asher, daughter the of Phanuel who was 84. when she recognized the

testify that women are chosen by Yahweh in different times, for various positions, but never to be priests. The key to this problem lies in the words the translators chose to use

Since we are dealing with controversy in this manner, caution is in order because we seemingly find contradictions in the scriptures, mostly among Paul's writings. A short search reveals that in Joel 2:28-32, Acts 2:16-21, where Joel's prophecy is twice in the New Testament, it speaks of the Daughters of Israel "shall prophesy." Other examples are in 1Cor. 14:3, 4, 12, 1Cor. 12:1-31. In Acts 21:8-9, It is clear that Phillip's four daughters were prophetesses. (evangelists like their father).

Notes on Page-149 of New Testament in Dake's Bible on women preachers:

1). In the Gospels we read of several women messengers who proclaimed "good news"

predicted and promised that He Himself would pour out His Spirit upon women and they would prophesy. To prophesy means to "speak to men to edification, exhortation and comfort."

3.) Acts 2:17-18 predicts that Yahweh will pour out His spirit upon both men and women in the latter days and they will prophesy.

4.) In Romans 16 we have record of a number of women servants of Yahweh in various churches. . . who were servants for His work.

5.) The Law made provision for women to make sacrifices, attend feasts and make vows (Deut

#### **Observe these important factors here.** 13: "For Adam was first formed, then Eve."

prophesy (heathen cannot.)

• The word prophesy used here in both Testaments is either the Heb. "naba" or the Greek word "propheteuo." Either way, they translate to "speaking under inspiration" (which could include predicting) or the word refers to, "sing by inspiration. " The same rule applies to 1 Cor. 11:5 where dress codes are recommended but implicate that women may "prophesy" in church, "meaning to speak under inspiration" (Strong's conc. Gr. propheteuo #4395). But, to translate this to Yahweh's approval to ordain women to the priesthood or to stand in the pulpit teaching men is distorting and mocking the scriptures.

• It should be kept in mind that both scriptures from Joel 2 and Acts 2 are prophecies for the last days (Acts 2:17), thus at that time Yahweh may ordain a few more of His worthy daughters (but feel assured, it will not be from members of NWO).

• Last, any of the meanings listed above could have been applied to the word "prophesied," as in Acts 19:6: "to teach, refute, reprove, admonish, or comfort others." [Thayer's Greek-English Lexicon, #4395, page 553). So why did they use the word least applicable?

Gen 3:16: "Unto the woman He said, I will greatly multiply thy sorrow and thy conception; in sorrow thou shalt bring forth children; and thy desire shall be to thy husband, and he shall rule over thee."

1 Cor 14:34: "Let your women keep silence in the churches: for it is not permitted unto them to speak; but they are commanded to be under obedience. as also saith the law."

1 Cor 14:35: "And if they will learn any thing, let them ask their husbands at home: for it is a shame for women to speak in the church."

1 Tim 2:11: "Let the woman learn in silence with all subjection."

12: "But I suffer not a woman to teach, nor to usurp authority over the man, but to be in silence."

Only the sons or daughters of Israel will :14 And Adam was not deceived, but the woman being deceived was in the transgression.

> :15 Notwithstanding she shall be saved in childbearing, if they continue in faith and charity and holiness with sobriety.



From an Israelite woman: Since the traditional role of the woman in the family has been to nurture the children, clean, wash clothes, cook meals, nurse the ill, grow a garden to provide food- (the Bible instructs women to plant a vineyard/garden), educate the young, sew/mend clothes, keeping the fire, etc., they have been pretty busy.

There is not enough time to do all this well and work outside the home too. My opinion is that woman were chosen to be the child-bearers of our race and that tied them to that \*job, otherwise both sexes would have a uterus. But, Yahweh didn't expect women to be Priests or elders in the tribe of Levi, not that a woman can't add her talents to help with His work. There are churches that wouldn't exist if it weren't for the creative or organization skills of the women members. And, most of the time, women are in charge of the children's Sunday School sessions.

Unfortunately, most of them don't have enough knowledge to be teaching and rely on the printed doctrine supplied by the group's regulators (The officials in the controlling sector of the denomination with the power to determine what is taught and how).

\* This doesn't mean that Mom couldn't use some help from her mate and the modern man does seem to be catching up with this- helping with dishes, folding clothes, paying bills, cooking (some even take on chef-type meals), vacuuming, watching the children so Mom can take a break, etc. These days there are even a few Dads that are taking on the job and are known as "Stay-at-home-Dads." Bless them for doing this monumental task of raising their family and keeping them— fed, clean, educated and off the streets.

As you can see, this article is served with a current-day twist and we ask Yahweh to bless our good Christian women--the Marys, Marthas, and Elizabeths in our churches (along with the male members of the congregation), we need them all desperately.

Note: This article is an extract from Pastor George Udvary's book "Christian Israel Biblical Reference Manual" Vol. I and can now be purchased from Pastor Eli James via his website at:



## **Anglo-Saxon Israel**

The End OS21965

## **Five Reasons Why You Should Probably Stop Using Anti-bacterial Soap** From Our Isle of Man Correspondent

announced a bold new position on antibacterial soap: Manufacturers have to show that it's both safe and more effective than simply washing with conventional soap and water, or they have to take it off the shelves in the next few years.

About 75 percent of liquid antibacterial soaps and 30 percent of bars use a chemical called triclosan as an active ingredient. The drug, which was originally used strictly in hospital settings, was adopted by manufacturers of soaps and other home products during the 1990's, eventually ballooning into an industry that's worth an estimated \$1 billion. Apart from soap, we've begun putting the chemical in wipes, hand gels, cutting boards, mattress pads and all sorts of home items as we try our best to eradicate any trace of bacteria from our environment.

But triclosan's use in home over-the-counter products was never fully evaluated by the FDA-incredibly, the agency was ordered to produce a set of guidelines for the use of triclosan in home products way back in 1972, but only published its final draft on December 16 of last year. Their report, the product of Manufacturers say they do have evidence of decades of research, notes that the costs of triclosan's

FEW WEEKS AGO, the FDA antibacterial soaps likely outweigh the benefits, and forces manufacturers to prove otherwise.

> Bottom line: Manufacturers have until 2016 to do so, or pull their products from the shelves. But we're here to tell you that you probably shouldn't wait that long to stop using antibacterial soaps. Here's our rundown of five reasons why that's the case:

> 1. Antibacterial soaps are no more effective than conventional soap and water. As mentioned in the announcement, 42 years of FDA researchalong with countless independent studies-have produced no evidence that triclosan provides any health benefits as compared to old-fashioned soap.

> "I suspect there are a lot of consumers who assume that by using an antibacterial soap product, they are protecting themselves from illness, protecting their families," Sandra Kweder, deputy director of the FDA's drug centre, told the AP. "But we don't have any evidence that that is really the case over simple soap and water."

> efficacy. superior but the

disagreement stems from the use of different These same effects haven't yet been found in sorts of testing methods. Tests that strictly measure the number of bacteria on a person's hands after use do show that soaps with triclosan kill slightly more bacteria than conventional ones. But the FDA wants data that show that this translates into an actual clinical benefit, such as reduced infection rates. So far, analyses of the health benefits don't show any evidence that triclosan can reduce the transmission of respiratory or gastrointestinal infections. This might be due to the fact that antibacterial soaps specifically target bacteria, but not the viruses that cause the majority of seasonal colds and flues.

2. Antibacterial soaps have the potential to create antibiotic-resistant bacteria. The reason that the FDA is making manufacturers prove these products' efficacy is because of a range of possible health risks associated with triclosan, and bacterial resistance is first on the list.

3. Heavy use of antibiotics can cause resistance, which results from a small subset of a bacteria population with a random mutation that allows it to survive exposure to the chemical. If that chemical is used frequently enough, it'll kill other bacteria, but allow this resistant subset to proliferate. If this happens on a broad enough scale, it can essentially render that chemical useless against the strain of bacteria.

This is currently a huge problem in medicine the World Health Organization calls it a "threat to global health security." Some bacteria species (most notably, MRSA) have even acquired resistance to several different drugs. complicating efforts to control and treat infections as they spread. Health officials say that further research is needed before we can say that triclosan is fueling resistance, but several studies have hinted at the possibility.

3. The soaps could act as endocrine disruptors. A number of studies have found that, in rats, frogs and other animals, triclosan appears to interfere with the body's regulation of thyroid hormone, perhaps because it chemically resembles the hormone closely enough that it can bind to its receptor sites. If this is the case in humans, too, there are worries that it could lead to problems such as infertility, artificiallyadvanced early puberty, obesity and cancer.

humans, but the FDA calls the animal studies "a concern"-and notes that, given the minimal benefits of long-term triclosan use, it's likely not worth the risk.



4. The soaps might lead to other health problems, too. There's evidence that children with prolonged exposure to triclosan have a higher chance of developing allergies, including peanut allergies and hay fever. Scientists speculate that this could be a result of reduced exposure to bacteria, which could be necessary for proper immune system functioning and development. Another study found evidence that triclosan interfered with muscle contractions in human cells, as well as muscle activity in live mice and minnows. This is especially concerning given other findings that the chemical can penetrate the skin and enter the bloodstream more easily than originally thought. A 2008 survey, for instance, found triclosan in the urine of 75 percent of people tested.

Antibacterial soaps are bad for the 5. environment. When we use a lot of triclosan in soap, that means a lot of triclosan gets flushed down the drain. Research has shown that small quantities of the chemical can persist after treatment at sewage plants, and as a result, USGS surveys have frequently detected it in streams and other bodies of water. Once in the environment, triclosan can disrupt algae's ability to perform photosynthesis.

The chemical is also fat-soluble—meaning that it builds up in fatty tissues—so scientists are concerned that it can biomagnify, appearing at greater levels in the tissues of animals higher up the food chain, as the triclosan of all the plants and animals below them is concentrated. Evidence of this possibility was turned up in 2009, when surveys of bottlenose dolphins off concerning levels of the chemical in their blood. What Should You Do?

If you're planning on giving up antibacterial soap—like Johnson & Johnson, Kaiser Permanente and several other companies have recently done-you have a couple options.

One is a non-antibiotic hand sanitizer, like Purell, which don't contain any triclosan and simply kill both bacteria and viruses with good old-fashioned alcohol. Because the effectiveness of hand-washing depends on how long you wash

the coast of South Carolina and Florida found for, a quick squirt of sanitizer might be more effective when time is limited.

> Outside of hospitals, though, the CDC recommends the time-tested advice you probably heard as a child: wash your hands with conventional soap and water. That's because while alcohol from hand sanitizer kills bacteria, it doesn't actually remove dirt or anything else you may have touched. But a simple hand wash should do the trick. The water doesn't need to be hot, and you're best off scrubbing for about 30 seconds to get properly clean.

#### The End OS21962

## **The Holocaust Narrative: Politics Trumps Science** By **Jim Fetzer**



"The fastest way to get expelled from a British university is by saving you are looking at chemical evidence for how Zyklon was used in World War II, with a discussion of how delousing technology functioned in the German World War II labour camps"-Nicholas Kollerstrom

**HE AUTHOR** of this refreshing scientific study of the Holocaust, Nicholas Kollerstrom, may be the most honourable man whom I have ever had the pleasure to know.

In response to PM David Cameron's denunciation of 7/7 and 9/11 sceptics as on a par with ISIS, he went to Scotland Yard with a copy of Terror on the Tube (3rd ed., 2011) and turned himself in.

Scotland Yard declined the honor, but this act-which symbolically castrated the PM's outrageous stance-was a striking illustration of his ability to tackle a problem by going right at it.

A distinguished historian of science with multiple degrees, including from Cambridge, he has published on 9/11 and especially 7/7, about which he appears to be the world's leading expert. When his attention turned to research on the use of Zykon B as a delousing agent in the labour camps run by the Germans during World War II, however, he was treated as an outcast.

He lost his position at University College London, which he had held for 15 years, where university officials did not bother to extend the opportunity of a rebuttal before they sacked him. He and I both spoke at the recent conference, "Academic Freedom: Are there limits to inquiry? JFK, 9/11 and the Holocaust", where this book reports the results of the research for which he was banned. The book, a stunning historic expose, has just appeared. I endorse it with my highest recommendation.

#### The Holocaust – Myth and Reality

The situation is completely absurd. No subject examination of the "gas chambers" has generates responses as extreme and irrational as what has come to be known as "the Holocaust".



Unlike any other event in human history, including even the most sacred religious beliefs, for anyone to question, dispute or deny its occurrence qualifies as "a hate crime," where Holocaust denial is even a prosecutable offence in certain jurisdictions. Unlike any other, this crime involves the expression of forbidden thoughts about a subject that has become taboo. The underlying desideratum is whether history is supposed to be accurate and true or, as Voltaire has put it, be merely "a pack of lies the living play upon the dead". Just so we know what we are talking about: In its broadest outlines, "the Holocaust" can be defined by means of its three primary elements, which I shall designate here as hypotheses (h1), (h2) and (h3):

(h1) that Hitler was attempting to exterminate the Jews and succeeded by putting around 6,000,000 to death;

(h2) that many of those deaths were brought about by the use of cyanide gas in chambers for that purpose; and,

(h3) that the chemical agent that brought about those deaths was Zykon B, to which the victims were subjected.

The science of the Holocaust does not leave any room for doubt about (h2) and (h3), since laws of biochemistry and of materials science-laws which cannot be violated and cannot be changed-entail that the bodies of those who are put to death using cyanide turn pink, while the walls of chambers used for that purpose would turn blue. But none of the bodies from those camps has been reported to have been pink; and

determined that none of them turned blue. Which means that (h2) and (h3) are not simply false but have been scientifically refuted.

#### Holocaust science "cut and dried"

As Nicholas Kollerstrom documents in this astonishing and brilliant book, the science of the Holocaust is this "cut and dried". To the extent to which the Holocaust narrative depends on (h2) and (h3), therefore, it cannot be sustained. The questions that remain about (h1) are a bit more complex but appear to be equally contrived. There are more than 236 references to 6,000,000 Jews who are either in acute distress or about to be assailed in the newspapers of the world prior to the Nuremberg Tribunal- the first of which appeared in 1890. The number seems to have no basis in fact but to have theological originsfrom a disputed passage in Leviticus-as to how many Jews must perish before they can return to "The Promised Land".

To the extent to which the number of Jews who died in the camps can be objectively determined, the most reliable numbers appear to come from the records of the International Committee of the Red Cross, which visited the camps and kept meticulous records of the identities of those who died and their cause of death. Not one is reported to have been put to death in gas chambers, and the total it reported in 1993 for all of the camps was 296,081 combined. Even rounding up to an even 600,000 victims-gypsies, Jews and the mentally and physically infirm-the empirical evidence thus contradicts the contention that 6,000,000 Jews were put to death and thereby falsifies hypothesis (h1).

Counting deaths attributed to the Holocaustapart from the records of the International Committee of the Red Cross-turns out to be an exercise in "fuzzy math", because none of them add up. As Faurisson observed during an interview on 13 December 2006, the Yad Vashem database was built up by "simple unverified declarations emanating from unverified sources and processed in such a way that one and the same person can be recorded as having died several times, even, it seems, as

many as ten times".[1] And even the most complete archives are not collated to make total numbers accessible but only individual cases which appears an obvious measure to preserve the untestability of (h1), the hypothesis that 6,000,000 Jews had perished.

#### Holocaust story falsified

So, insofar as we depend upon empirical evidence and laws of science, the Holocaust story appears to be false and cannot be sustained. The question that therefore arises is how the Nuremberg Tribunal—widely cited as a paragon of intellectual integrity and of the application of moral principles to historical events—could possibly have produced such a highly misleading account of crucial events at the conclusion of World War II. The answer to this, I believe, has been provided by Robert Faurisson in his paper "Against Hollywoodism, Revisionism," who explains the daunting task confronting the Allies to conceal or justify war crimes that they had committed in winning the war.[2]



The Allies' systematic and massive destruction of German cities not only brought about the deaths of hundreds of thousands of German civilians but also interdicted the railroad lines that would have re-supplied those camps, which were located near major industrial plants and whose inmates were providing labour to run them. It would have been poor business practice to exterminate the work force, but the large number of deaths from starvation because the Third Reich could not re-supply them provided an opportunity to deflect responsibility from the Allies onto Germany, which the Allies seized. A Hollywood director was brought in and shot 80,000 feet of film at the camps, where 6,000 feet (7.5% of the total) was used to shift the blame for those deaths onto Nazi Germany, which was an easy sell, all things considered.

As Kollerstrom explains, Zyklon B was used at the labour camps, not as a method of extermination but for the sake of maintaining hygiene among the inmates. Typhus and dysentery were omnipresent problems, where Zyklon B was applied in copious quantities—but as a disinfectant, not as an agent for bringing about the deaths of millions of inmates. And in response to the colour pink-and-blue findings, an alternative explanation has been given that they were killed using diesel exhaust fumes, but unlike carbon monoxide, diesel exhaust fumes bring about nausea and severe headaches but usually do not bring about death by asphyxiation. Classified British documents

Among the most valuable contributions of this study derives from Nick's use of classified records acquired by British authorities, who were sceptical of claims that mass gassings were being carried out and had reports in hand of the use of Zyklon for the purpose of delousing the inmates, where infestations had become alarming. Many tons of Zyklon were consumed at Auschwitz-Birkenau from the summer of 1942 on, as Kollerstrom reports, which is easy to confirm because it soaked into the walls of the disinfestation chambers and is still there. His essays on the subject-"The Walls of Auschwitz", "Leuchter Twenty Years On" and "The Auschwitz Gas Chamber Illusion"[3]would become the cause of his removal from a post-doctoral post he had held for 15 years!

As a professional philosopher of science, I appreciate Nick's references to Sir Karl Popper, who advocated the method of falsificationism, whereby the truth of theories in science and in history can be tested by attempts to falsify them. When they resist our best efforts to refute them, then we have good reason to believe they might be true. But equally applicable here are the reflections of Imre Lakatos, who discussed research programs with hard cores of claims,[4] such as Newton's laws of motion or, in the case we are considering, the above-mentioned hypotheses (h1), (h2) and (h3). When the defenders of these hypotheses are confronted by the risk of refutation, they can appeal to auxiliary hypotheses in an attempt to deflect the refuting data and thereby preserve their theory.

A stellar example arises in the context of the attempt to explain away why the number of those who died as substantiated by the meticulous records of the Red Cross supports the inference have no business becoming involved. In this that less than 10% of the 6,000,000 claimed actually died from all causes-and none from death in gas chambers. To cope with that finding, the claim has been made that the records are incomplete because large numbers of Jews were taken directly to the gas chambers and never registered-not even by name. Not only are contentions of this kind un-falsifiable, untestable and hence unscientific, but they reflect the degenerating character of the Holocaust paradigm, which has spawned no new data or research that could possibly overcome the mountain of evidence against it. Excluding falsifying data

Another method for immunizing a hypothesis from refutation is by the exclusion of falsifying data.[5] The defenders of hypotheses (h1)-(h3) have committed a mind-boggling example of fallacious science, which further manifests their commitment to a degenerating research program. When the Auschwitz museum was confronted with the fact that the innocuous delousing chambers at Auschwitz have blue walls-due to being saturated with blue iron cyanide compounds-but the alleged homicidal gas chambers have not, they commissioned their own chemical research. Instead of testing wall samples for the chemicals that had caused the blue stains, the researchers they commissioned simply excluded those chemicals from their analysis by employing a procedure that could not detect them.[6]



They justified this measure with the claim that they did not understand exactly how these compounds could form and that they might therefore be mere artefacts. Researchers who don't understand what they are investigating

case, however, it appears to be deliberate. They have deliberately ignored an obvious explanation-that Zyklon B was only used for delousing-which would have remedied their lack of comprehension.[7] As a result of this failure to adhere to the principles of science, they produced a report of no scientific value, which they used to arrive at a predetermined conclusion.[8]

That Nicholas Kollerstrom was booted from his post at University College, London-and without any hearing or opportunity to present his defence, where the truth of his observations, one might have thought, would have made a difference-is one of a large number of indications that even our best academic institutions and societies are not capable of dealing objectively with the history of World War II. Indeed, it struck me like a bolt of lightning out of the blue when, during a talk by Gilad Atzmon in Madison, Wisconsin, about Jewish identity politics, I realized that the Holocaust mythology benefits Zionism and the government of Israel by playing, in the promotion of its political agenda, upon a Western sense of guilt for the death of 6,000,000 Jews during World War II.

The claim that someone is "anti-Semitic" or a "Holocaust denier" is taken to be the most severe form of ethical damnation possible in this time and age. But distinctions must be drawn between criticism of the acts and policies of the Israeli government and discounting the worth or value of human beings on the basis of their ethnic origins or religious orientation. Condemning the Israeli government for its vicious and unwarranted onslaught of the people of Gaza, for example, is not "anti-Semitic". And if exposing the Holocaust narrative as political propaganda makes one a "Holocaust denier," all of us who put truth before politics ought to wear that label as a badge of honour.

#### The ISIS fiasco

As an illustration of the depths of depravity of those who would uphold the myth, consider that, as an historian of science, Kollerstrom was invited to contribute three entries-including that on Sir Isaac Newton, which is the most important-to the Biographical Encyclopaedia of Astronomers (2007), which has more than

1550 entries by some 400 authors from 40 countries. Yet Noel M. Swerdlow of the University of Chicago, a reviewer for Isis, the journal of America's History of Science Society, recommended that the book be sent back to the publisher and pulped because Kollerstrom had been involved in research on the Holocaust! This was such an outrage that I wrote to the editorial board of Isis, which allowed a Letter to the Editor to appear.



Something is terribly wrong, when the world's leading society on the history of science does no more to correct a grotesque abuse by one of its reviewers on a book that involved so many contributors and an enormous investment in time and money, where the moral issues are so blatant and obvious. It is ironic that the Nuremberg Tribunal would declare "collective punishment" a war crime. The Allies were responsible for the collective punishment of German civilians by their systematic bombing of German cities. Isis has committed a comparable intellectual crime by tolerating collective punishment of 400 scholars for the purported offences of one. By acquiescing to its reviewer's abuse, Isis has committed the fallacy of guilt by association and has displayed an appalling lack of journalistic ethics.

Nick Kollerstrom is the only party here who has displayed a commitment to exposing falsehoods and revealing truths. His defence is very simple: the hypotheses on which the Holocaust narrative has been based are provably false and not even scientifically possible. I have written about this in my articles "The War on Truth: Research on the Holocaust can end your career,"[9] "ISIS trips, stumbles and falls,"[10] and discussed it during my presentation at the 2014 conference "Academic Freedom: Are there limits to inquiry? JFK, 9/11 and the Holocaust," at which Nick and I both spoke.[11]

But far better than reviewing them, read this brilliant study by the world's leading iconoclast,

Nick Kollerstrom, my dear friend, whom I admire beyond words as a splendid example of what historians should be doing in their professional work by getting history straight lest Voltaire's admonition continue to apply including about the atrocities of World War II. There were real atrocities committed by all sides, just not the ones about which we have been told.

#### References

[1] "Interview with Professor Robert Faurisson at the Guest House of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the Islamic Republic of Iran," www.robertfaurisson.blogspot.com, December 13, 2006.

[2] Ibid., February 3, 2012.

[3] See Nick's online papers at www.codoh.com/library/authors/1580/

[4] Imre Lakatos, Alan Musgrave (eds.), Criticism and the Growth of Knowledge, London, 1965, Cambridge University Press, Cambridge 1970.

[5] Sir Karl Popper systematically investigated the diverse methods of immunizing theories in his The Logic of Scientific Discovery, Hutchinson & Co., London 1968, pp. 82-97.

[6] Jan Markiewicz, Wojciech Gubala, Jerzy Łabędź, "A Study of the Cyanide Compounds Content in the Walls of the Gas Chambers in the Former Auschwitz and Birkenau Concentration Camps," Z Zagadnien Nauk Sadowych, Vol. XXX (1994) pp. 17-27.

[7] They quoted but ignored a book which had exposed their fallacious approach (Ernst Gauss, Vorlesungen über Zeitgeschichte, Grabert, Tübingen 1993; Engl.: G. Rudolf, Lectures on the Holocaust, 2nd ed., The Barnes Review, Washington, DC, 2010).

[8] See Germar Rudolf, "Polish Pseudo-Scientists," in: G. Rudolf, Carlo Mattogno, Auschwitz-Lies, 2nd ed., The Barnes Review, Washington, DC, 2011, pp. 45-67.

[9] Veterans Today, February 4, 2012; www.veteranstoday.com.

[10] On my blog at www.jamesfetzer.blogspot.com, June 13, 2011.

## [11] April 26, 2014; for details see www.veteranstoday.com/2014/06/05/

Jim Fetzer, a former Marine Corps officer, has published widely on the theoretical foundations of scientific knowledge, computer science, artificial intelligence, cognitive science, and evolution and mentality. McKnight Professor Emeritus at the University of Minnesota Duluth, he has also conducted extensive research into the

see assassination of JFK, the events of 9/11, and the plane crash that killed US Sen. Paul Wellstone. The founder of Scholars for 9/11 Truth, his latest books include The Evolution of Intelligence (2005), The 9/11 Conspiracy (2007), Render nce, Unto Darwin (2007), and The Place of and Probability in Science (2010).

#### The End OS21966

## The Real Reason Wheat Is Toxic (Its Not Gluten Or Hybridisation) From Our Midlands Correspondent



The stories became far too frequent to ignore

**E**MAILS FROM FOLKS WITH ALLERGIC or digestive issues to wheat in the United States experienced no symptoms whatsoever when they tried eating pasta on vacation in Italy.

Confused parents wondering why wheat consumption sometimes triggered autoimmune reactions in their children but not at other times.

In my own home, I've long pondered why my husband can eat the wheat I prepare at home, but he experiences negative digestive effects eating even a single roll in a restaurant.

There is clearly something going on with wheat that is not well known by the general public. It goes far and beyond organic versus non-organic, gluten or hybridisation because even conventional wheat triggers no symptoms for some who eat wheat in other parts of the world.

#### What indeed is going on with wheat?

For quite some time, I secretly harboured the notion that wheat in the United States must, in fact, be genetically modified. GMO wheat secretly invading the North American food supply seemed the only thing that made sense and could account for the varied experiences I was hearing about.

I reasoned that it couldn't be the gluten or wheat hybridisation. Gluten and wheat hybrids have been consumed for thousands of years. It just didn't make sense that this could be the reason for so many people suddenly having problems with wheat and gluten in general in the past 5-10 years.

Finally, the answer came over dinner a couple of months ago with a friend who was well versed in the wheat production process. I started researching the issue for myself, and was, quite frankly, horrified at what I discovered.

The good news is that the reason wheat has become so toxic in the United States is not because it is secretly GMO as I had feared (thank goodness!).

The bad news is that the problem lies with the manner in which wheat is grown and harvested by conventional wheat farmers.

You're going to want to sit down for this one. I've had some folks burst into tears in horror when I passed along this information before. Common wheat harvest protocol in the United States is to drench the wheat fields with Roundup several days before the combine harvesters work through the fields as the practice allows for an earlier, easier and bigger harvest.

Pre-harvest application of the herbicide Roundup or other herbicides containing the deadly active ingredient glyphosate to wheat and barley as a desiccant was suggested as early as 1980. It has since become routine over the past 15 years and is used as a drying agent 7-10 days before harvest within the conventional farming community.

According to Dr. Stephanie Seneff of MIT who

has studied the issue in depth and who I recently saw present on the subject at a nutritional Conference Indianapolis, in desiccating non-organic wheat crops with glyphosate just before harvest came into vogue late in the 1990's with the result that most of the nonorganic wheat in the United States is now

contaminated with it. Seneff explains that when you expose wheat to a toxic chemical like glyphosate, it actually releases more seeds resulting in a slightly greater yield: "It 'goes to seed' as it dies. At its last gasp, it releases the seed" says Dr. Seneff.

According to the US Department of Agriculture, as of 2012, 99% of durum wheat, 97% of spring wheat, and 61% of winter wheat has been treated with herbicides. This is an increase from 88% for durum wheat, 91% for spring wheat and 47% for winter wheat since 1998.

Here's what wheat farmer Keith Lewis has to say about the practice:

I have been a wheat farmer for 50 yrs and one wheat production practice that is very common is applying the herbicide Roundup (glyposate) just prior to harvest. Roundup is licensed for preharvest weed control. Monsanto, the manufacturer of Roundup claims that application to plants at over 30% kernel moisture result in roundup uptake by the plant into the kernels. Farmers like this practice because Roundup kills the wheat plant allowing an earlier harvest.

A wheat field often ripens unevenly, thus applying Roundup preharvest evens up the greener parts of the field with the more mature. The result is on the less mature areas Roundup is translocated into the kernels and eventually harvested as such.

This practice is not licensed. Farmers mistakenly call it "desiccation." Consumers eating products made from wheat flour are undoubtedly consuming minute amounts of

Roundup. An interesting aside, malt barley which is made into beer is not acceptable in the marketplace if it has been sprayed with pre-harvest Roundup. Lentils and peas are not accepted in the market place if it was sprayed with pre-harvest roundup..... but wheat is ok.. This farming practice greatly concerns me and it should further concern consumers of wheat products.

Here's what wheat farmer Seth Woodland of Woodland and Wheat in Idaho had to say about the practice of using herbicides for wheat dry down:

That practice is bad . I have fellow farmers around me that do it and it is sad. Lucky for you not all of us farm that way. Being the farmer and also the president of a business, we are proud to say that we do not use round up on our wheat ever!

This practice is not just widespread in the United States either. The Food Standards Agency in the United Kingdom reports that use of Roundup as a wheat desiccant results in glyphosate residues *regularly* showing up in bread samples. Other European countries are waking up to to the danger, however. In the Netherlands, use of Roundup is completely banned with France likely soon to follow.

Using Roundup on wheat crops throughout the entire growing season and even as a desiccant just prior to harvest may save the farmer money and increase profits, but it is devastating to the



health of the consumer who ultimately consumes consequent expression of autoimmune disease the glyphosate residue laden wheat kernels.

The chart below is from a December 2013 study published in the Journal Interdisciplinary Toxicology examining glyphosate pathways to modern diseases such as celiac and gluten intolerance.

While the herbicide industry maintains that glyphosate is minimally toxic to humans, research published the in Journal <u>Entropy</u> strongly argues otherwise by shedding light on exactly how glyphosate disrupts mammalian physiology.

Authored by Anthony Samsel and Stephanie Seneff of MIT, the paper investigates glyphosate's inhibition of cytochrome P450 (CYP) enzymes, an overlooked component of lethal toxicity to mammals.

The currently accepted view is that glyphosate is not harmful to humans or any mammals. This flawed view is so pervasive in the conventional farming community that Roundup salesmen have been known to foolishly drink it during presentations!

However, just because Roundup doesn't kill you immediately doesn't make it nontoxic. In fact, the active ingredient in Roundup lethally disrupts the all important shikimate pathway found in beneficial gut microbes which is responsible for synthesis of critical amino acids.

Friendly gut bacteria, also called probiotics, play a critical role in human health. Gut bacteria aid prevent permeability digestion, of the gastointestinal tract (which discourages the development of autoimmune disease), synthesize vitamins and provide the foundation for robust immunity. In essence:

Roundup significantly disrupts the functioning of beneficial bacteria in the gut and contributes to permeability of the intestinal wall and

In synergy with disruption of the biosynthesis of important amino acids via the shikimate pathway, glyphosate inhibits the cytochrome P450 (CYP) enzymes produced by the gut microbiome. CYP enzymes are critical to

human biology because they detoxify the multitude of foreign chemical compounds, xenobiotics, that we are exposed to in our modern environment today.

As a result, humans exposed to glyphosate through use of Roundup in their community or through ingestion of its residues on industrialized food products become even more vulnerable

to the damaging effects of other chemicals and environmental toxins they encounter!

What's worse is that the negative impact of glyphosate exposure is slow and insidious over months and years as inflammation gradually gains a foothold in the cellular systems of the body.

The consequences of this systemic inflammation are most of the diseases and conditions associated with the Western lifestyle:

- Gastrointestinal disorders
- Obesity
- Diabetes •
- Heart Disease •
- Depression •
- Autism •
- Infertility •
- Cancer
- **Multiple Sclerosis** •
- Alzheimer's disease •
- And the list goes on and on and on ...

In a nutshell, Dr. Seneff's study of Roundup's ghastly glyphosate which the wheat crop in the United States is doused with uncovers the manner in which this lethal toxin harms the

symptoms.

human body by decimating beneficial gut sensitivity to wheat or autoimmune disease in microbes with the tragic end result of disease, degeneration, and widespread suffering

#### Got the picture yet?

Even if you think you have no trouble digesting wheat, it is still very wise to avoid conventional wheat as much as possible in your diet!

#### You Must Avoid Toxic Wheat No **Matter What**

The bottom line is that avoidance of conventional wheat in the United States is absolutely imperative even if you don't currently have a gluten allergy or wheat sensitivity. The increase in the amount of glyphosate applied to wheat closely correlates with the rise of celiac disease and gluten intolerance. Dr. Seneff points out that the increases in these diseases are not just genetic in nature, but also have an environmental cause as not all patient symptoms are alleviated by eliminating gluten from the diet.

The effects of deadly glyphosate on your biology are so insidious that lack of symptoms today means literally nothing.

If you don't have problems with wheat now, you will in the future if you keep eating conventionally produced, toxic wheat!

#### How to Eat Wheat Safely

Obviously, if you've already developed a sensitivity or allergy to wheat, you must avoid it. Period.

But, if you aren't celiac or gluten sensitive and would like to consume this ancestral food safely, you can do what we do in our home. We only source organic, preferably low gluten, unhybridized Einkorn wheat for bread-making, pancakes, cookies etc. But, when we eat out or are purchasing food from the store, conventional wheat products are rejected without exception.

This despite the fact that we have no gluten allergies whatsoever in our home - yet.

I am firmly convinced that if we did nothing, our entire family at some point would develop

some form due to the toxic manner in which it is processed and the glyphosate residues that are contained in conventional wheat products.

#### What Are You Going to Do About **Toxic Wheat?**

How did you react to the news that US wheat farmers are using Roundup, not just to kill weeds, but to dry out the wheat plants to allow for an earlier, easier and bigger harvest and that such a practice causes absorption of toxic glyphosate, the active ingredient in Roundup and other herbicides, right into the wheat kernels themselves?

Did you feel outraged and violated like I did? How will you implement a conventional wheatavoidance strategy going forward even if you haven't yet developed a problem with gluten or wheat sensitivity?

What about other crops where Roundup is used as a pre-harvest dessicant such as barley, sugar cane, rice, seeds, dried beans and peas, sugar cane, sweet potatoes, and sugar beets? Will you only be buying these crops in organic form from now on to avoid this modern, man-made scourge?

Sarah, The Healthy Home Economist.

#### The End OS21955

### **Steven Books**

League Enterprises 49, Lodge Lane Grays Essex **RM17 5RZ** 

For books by identity authors – Kenneth McKilliam, Ria Splinter and Richard Porter plus many other subjects and difficult to obtain books.

http://www.stevenbooks.co.uk/category/341/Religion

## **Letters And Views**



#### Treason

Law Repeals Section Law Commission 11 Tothill Street Thame London SW1 9LJ 30-11-2014

Sir,\_\_I am enclosing a copy of a freedom of information request and a list of treason allegations accepted by the police as a means of explanation as to why it is essential you forget the wishes of your political masters and worry instead about the requirements of this Kingdoms ancient common and constitutional law. Law you breach at peril of your life.

You are I understand looking at repealing the 1945 Treason Act an act which brought trials for treason under the same rules as trials for murder. The 1695 Treason Act contains a requirement that trials for treason within the realm must be brought within three years of the treason occurring, this is of course nonsensical and was designed to protect those who attempted to remove the King as happened in 1649 some 46 years earlier. By bringing the procedure for treason trials into line with murder trials for which there is no time limit on prosecution this effectively repealed this 3 year time limit by implied repeal.

It is my belief the government are regularly committing treason against Her Majesty to whom we all owe an absolute duty of loyalty, and the requirements of the English Constitution. Which you also breach at peril of your life. The repeal in 1998 of the death penalty for treason

makes treason a win, win situation and makes treason more likely as such under English Common law the repeal is void and of no effect. So unless you wish to be the subject of an allegation to the police of treason by removing the protections surrounding Her Majesty and the English Constitution you will kill the repeal of the 1945 Treason Act dead. A police service you can see are accepting allegations of treason based on the law as it is written and the evidence to substantiate it, in your case a recommendation for repeal which in law constitutes a conspiracy to commit treason.

I would remind you the Justice Ministry recently tried to slip through the repeal of sec 3 of the 1848 Treason Felony Act the very section under which the police have accepted treason allegations against Anthony Lynton Blair one time Prime Minister and David Cameron and Nick Clegg Prime Minster and deputy, and having been caught with their hand in the till had to publicly claim it was a mistake which if repealed would have sent them to prison for life.

By repealing the 1945 Act they I have no doubt are trying to reinstate the 3 year time limit and thus prevent us stretching Blair's neck. Alfred the Great started the practice of hanging Judges who broke the law, I believe the last Judge hung for that offence was hanging Judge Jeffrey's. Let us hope Judge Jones is not the next one we hang for this offence. **Respectfully Submitted**, **Albert Burgess.** 

#### Cognizance of the House of Lords. Copy of Letter to Baroness De Sousa

My Lady\_\_\_\_, I am a retired long service special constable who for the last eight years has been studying in depth the history and development of the English Constitution frequently misnamed the British Constitution it is not Scotland having by the forbearance of King Edward III been allowed to keep their own law and Constitution, when he allowed the Scottish King David who he had captured in battle to return to Scotland to rule as a vassal King to Edward.

For many years now the English Constitution has been written out of school and university curriculum's, hence the almost total lack of knowledge of the English Common and Hogan-Howe so that he can use his best Constitutional Law in the Kingdom generally and both Houses of Parliament in particular. There are an increasing number of Her Majesty's indigenous subjects who are experiencing a growing concern at the lack of adherence to our common and constitutional law most know instinctively that there has been a major deviation from the principles of English Law which is eminently fair and reasonable, criminal years old and never in my life could I have dreamed of English people talking openly about armed revolution, yet such conversations are now common place.



Pearson of in the Upper House over the murder of Fusilier Lee Rigby on a London Street broad in daylight, by two Muslims who quoted

verses from the Koran as they removed his head. Lord Pearson was discussing the Prime Minster David Cameron's remarks following this most despicable murder.

Two Muslim's sitting in the Lower House, Mr Khalid Mahood and Yasmin Qureshi have I believe written to you asking you to discipline Lord Pearson for his racist comments. Islam is no more a race than Catholicism or Protestantism are races these are all religious beliefs which transcend national borders.

However by writing to you asking for you to discipline Lord Pearson they are attempting to use the race card to overawe the Upper House into giving up their right to untrammelled free speech, a free speech protected by the ancient Common Law Cognisance of either house to conduct its own business in its own way. This constitutes a common law treason against the constitutional arrangements of Parliament, and an act of treason contrary to sec 3 of the 1848 Treason Felony Act. I would most respectfully request that you place this matter in the hands of replacements for our Bill of Rights 1688/9 and the Commissioner of the Metropolis Sir Bernard Magna Carta, and repeals of Acts of parliament

endeavours to investigate this blatant attempt to overawe the Upper House. With the view to bringing a prosecution under the 1848 Treason Felony Act. Parliamentary privilege does not extend to covering criminal offences generally or treason in particular.

My Lady I would very much welcome an opportunity to meet with you and any Peers you feel would be beneficial in the House in order that we can discuss fully the crimes against the constitutional arrangements of Parliament by the Lower House who have been on a power grab since 1420 at the expense of the Upper House Recently Lord democracy and the subjects of Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth II and Her Majesty in person. Rannoch (left) I am in a position to chronicle the abuses to the gave a speech common and constitutional law of England by the common man in the Lower House who given a small amount of authority now sees himself as more important than the Kings of England. Respectfully submitted, Albert Burgess **FSEFA** 

#### **Quote By Bismarck**

I fear that Jewish banks with their craftiness and tortuous tricks will entirely control the exuberant riches of America and will use it to systematically corrupt modern civilization. The Jews will not hesitate to plunge the whole of Christendom into wars and chaos in order that "the earth should become the inheritance of Israel." (Interview by C. Seim, La Vieille France, March, 1921.). Yours Truly, KH, Midlands.

#### **Destruction of Common Law protection**

Sir, As the clamour grows to leave the EU and it's disastrous policies, the Europhile Common Purpose 5th columnists in our parliamentary bodies are ramping up their destruction of our Common Law protections, and the restrictions designed to stop tyranny by our political class.

In short they are having a bonfire of the legislations, claiming some are old and out of date, when the complete reverse is true.

The Law Commission are putting forward

and Laws under which the courts can prosecute a great deal of my money to do, which is no more those who work against the country, Her Majesty and ultimately the indigenous people of England mind is to uphold the Law of England the way and Britain.

Tony Blair repealed the 1795 Treason Act under It is obvious that you have achieved such an cover of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 under which he could have been prosecuted for treason, and the Law Commission is at present considering repealing the 1945 Treason Act, so that the statute of limitations for prosecution is reduced again to just three years as in the 1695 Treason Act.

All these things remove the protections surrounding Her Majesty, Her people, and the English Constitution, which represents a government acting beyond their authority, abusing the power they hold in trust for the electorate, and if it is not stopped will result in elected dictatorship and tyranny instead of democracy.

For those who wish to know more, please go to this website:http://www.englishconstitutiongroup.org

#### Yours truly, Mrs Jane Birkby

#### Copy of Letter to Sir Bernard Hogan-**Howe** -Commissioner of Police

#### **Ref Islam**



Ι Sir have • watched with growing dismay not only your force but others failing to uphold Her Majesty's law in this Kingdom today.

There are marches by groups of militant Muslims carrying signs and chanting death threats,

whilst your officers instead of throwing the lot in a cell, or my preferred method just shoot them and save the taxpayers some money, simply allow them to break the laws of this Kingdom with impunity. I do of course expect to be arrested and charged for the sheer bloody I believe at the request of Westminster City audacity of suggesting you do what you are paid Council.

than your job, which in case it had slipped your it is written.

exalted position that you feel you are no longer bound by Her Majesty's laws, which you seem to put aside or use to suit your personnel convenience. In case it has escaped your notice that just happens to be placing your self above Her Majesty and imagining her death as a fully Sovereign Queen, CONTRARY to the 1351 Treason Act. For which I hope after a trial in one of Her Majesty's Courts we will hang you. Now let me have the unmitigated gall to suggest

that you do what we pay you for and enforce the 1861 Offences against the Person Act sec 16, Threats to Kill and take these brain dead murdering swine off our streets before they really do run with blood, starting I have no doubt with the blood of Her Majesty's natural born subjects, and ending with every Muslim in this Kingdom dead, once the wrath of the people takes over.

We now have Muslims threatening to kidnap and decapitate a female officer off the street no doubt after raping and buggering her. Under these circumstances I would recommend sending every officer on a two day forearms course and arming every officer with a semi automatic firearm. It might also be an idea to employ ex armed forces personnel in the rank of constable to patrol with officers or supply trained armed response teams equipped with a full range of personal weapons they used in the forces and are therefore fully competent in the care and use of. Whilst you are at it I am led to believe there have been in excess of 80.000 cases of female genital mutilation in this Kingdom, which just happens to be aggravated assault causing grievous bodily harm. So I would consider it a great personnel regular favour to me if you would put your copy of gays are us or playboy down or which ever piece of trash you fill your days with and take a good long look at sec 18 of the 1861 Offences against the Person Act and go out and arrest a few thousand people, and put them on trial. Even the daughters of Muslims are protected by Her Majesty's laws. I understand your officers are taking food and sleeping bags off down and outs living on the streets in an effort to get them off the streets this

a sleeping bag to allow them to eat and stay as warm as possible in the street, that food and sleeping bag are their property. The definition of theft is 'to appropriate property belonging to another with the intention of permanently depriving them of it'. Your officers are in a conspiracy with Westminster City Council to steal property belonging to another with the intention of permanently depriving them of it. GAVE **YOUR** WHO **OFFICERS** AUTHORITY TO COMMIT ACTS OF THEFT? Contrary to the 1968 Theft Act sec 6. What happens to that property once your officers have stolen it. On whose authority was it stolen?

Why have these officers not been arrested along with Westminster City Council officials and

If the down and out is given food either and or charged with a conspiracy to steal contrary to the 1977 Criminal Law Act SEC 1/1 and individually theft contrary to the 1968 Theft Act sec 6? I do require an answer to these questions Every one of Her Majesty's natural born subjects has a duty of loyalty to this Kingdom and that includes defending the rights of those less fortunate than ourselves. Should any of these down and outs die as a result of freezing because your officers stole their means of keeping warm whoever stole that sleeping bag is guilty of murder by gross neglect. Oh and don't bother quoting the 2002 Police Reform Act at me it flies in the face of our common and constitutional law and is therefore void and unlawful and provably so. Respectfully submitted, Albert Burgess.

## St Michael the Archangel Penhurst Church East Sussex England & The Knights Templar **By William Bolitho Holland**



St Michael the Archangel Penhurst Church East Sussex. The 14th century parish church is dedicated to St Michael the Archangel.

The Knights Templar brought back to England the Ancient Hebrew Knowledge of THE SEPHER YETZIRAH (The book of formation, also known as the book of creation, or the book of Abraham).

Also found in this Church evidence of the book of creation, carved on the wall, and the ancient code carved on the door post on entering the Church.

We also witnessed in the Church at the time of the discovery many unseen spirits, (ghosts) they were expelled promptly in the name of YESHUA

(JESUS). On closer examination of these marks on the wall you will see that they represent ancient spiritual knowledge, written in code which I am continuing to translate.

If you ever desire to go to this Church, I must warn you that you must be a Christian or be a seeker of the Christian faith, any other motive you will be putting yourself in considerable danger.



More ancient knowledge to be revealed in forthcoming posts.

This charming little church is in the hamlet of Penhurst next to the Retreat Centre. At Penhurst. the worship and

services use the 1662 Book of Common Prayer and this is greatly appreciated by the congregation that meets there. Services are conducted here at 9.00 am on the first Sunday of the month and otherwise at 10.30 am.

The Church dates from around 1340 with substantial extension and alteration over the following one and a half centuries.

It is situated in an elevated position in a quiet rural setting consisting of a Manor House with its own roadside pond and farm buildings. The area remains largely unchanged and unspoilt over generations.

The Church is built of Wealden sandstone in large blocks, carefully squared and without significant alteration over the years. The West tower has a tall elegant arch, hipped roof with eaves and an interesting centre post. The staircase leads to an upper storey, which is tile hung and contains two bells cast in 1781. This area provides access to the main roof space.

On the North side there is a small Chapel/Vestry and on the South side an open timber framed porch of simple design but of considerable interest and with a weathered appearance.

There are several other features in the Church,

which are notable including the 14<sup>th</sup> century screen dividing the Nave from the Chancel and a Piscina on the South side of the Sanctuary. The carved oak pulpit dates from Tudor times and is thought to have been brought from the Long Melford Church in Suffolk.

The Church was renovated from near dereliction in the early 1960s by Paul Broomhall (who lived in the adjacent Manor House). He also established a trust fund for its upkeep. **The End**.

## Cloudbusting & Chemtrailing T. Stokes



**HE Chemtrail** Programme that we see today began in earnest in the 90s. However the technology has existed for a lot longer, One notable example was in

Britain from the late 50s through to the 70s, when large parts of the country were sprayed with chemicals for germ warfare experiments, this information was locked away in Government archives and has only recently been released to the public through whistle-blowers, the East Anglia region had many spray type experiments and many people have had children with birth defects because of this government sponsored RAF aerosol spraying campaigns and blamed it on the crop sprays.

The RAF does not have a good name in Britain, constantly lying about UFO reports and sightings and confiscating film and photographs, alongside the outrageous bombing of hospitals schools and refugee columns at the end of W W II, the British people fought for 70 years to stop the RAF getting wartime medals over their war crimes, Winston Churchill now recognised as a criminal, ordered sprays from aircraft to be used on Iraqi villages in 1920 and people were pictured dying as the aircraft flew overhead.

**HE Chemtrail** These sprays can both cause and stop rainfall, Programme that the US inventor Charles Hatfield was we see today commissioned by several states to bring rain to in earnest in the the parched earth, the video by Kate Bush shows However the this graphically well.

> The German armies had plans for much developed weaponry but never used gas as Hitler kept to his agreement about its use and never developed the Atom bomb.

> The principle British researcher on organophosphate toxins, Bernard Saunders, did discover a nerve gas, known as "diisopropylfluorophosphate (DFP)", but it was much less deadly than Tabun or Sarin.

> However, DFP could be mixed with mustard agent, forming a combination that was nastier and also had a much lower freezing point than mustard by itself, creating an effective winter weather agent, because gas can blow anywhere, it is really a weapon against civilians and this was why it was tested in confined spaces such as the London underground.

> The British RAF also caused huge flooding in the south of England where many lives were lost and properties ruined.

> The US government also deployed similar technology during the Vietnam War, where they used cloud seeding technology to prolong the monsoon season to disrupt the Vietnamese

supply lines. It was called Operation Popeye and was considered successful.

More recently the Chinese government publicly used similar technology during the Olympics to ensure that the skies remained clear. I cite these examples as evidence of weather manipulation technology that has been in use for many years. Although the Chemtrail Programme is slightly different, it is based upon the same technology that we know has been deployed historically.

In the 1990s, people began to notice that the contrails normally emitted by aircraft were lingering in the sky, forming cloud cover and blocking out the sun. Some of these people could see that they were being sprayed with some substance, so in order to understand what it was; they had their rainwater and soil independently tested. The tests consistently found exceedingly high levels of aluminium, barium and strontium in areas affected by spraying.

These tests have now been carried out in many countries around the world with the same results.

Some of the countries in which tests have been done include the USA, Canada, Australia, New Zealand, Britain, France, Germany, Spain, France and many others.

From these tests people have become aware that they are being sprayed – but this gives rise to more questions than it answers. How are they doing this? And who is doing it?

High level whistle-blowers claim that only GM crops can survive these sprays, and that Monsanto owned by Rothschild is gradually gaining control of the food supply, and in the USA in many states it's illegal to use rainwater butts for your plants and to grow foodstuff in your own garden, the US government is said by insiders to be planning a civil war on its own people which is why it wants to disarm them, and food control is another weapon always used by totalitarian regimes.

#### The End OS21876

## **Sayings By And About Jews**



E s e r p e nts, ye generation of vipers, how can ye escape the damnation of hell?" -Jesus the M e s s i a h speaking to the Jews, *Matthew* 23:33

"Ye are of your father the devil, and the lusts of your father ye will do. He was a murderer from the beginning, and abode not in the truth, because there is no truth in him. When he speaketh a lie, he speaketh of his own: for he is a liar, and the father of it." - *Jesus the Messiah speaking to the Jews, John 8:44* 

"One of the finest things ever done by the mob was the Crucifixion of Christ. Intellectually it was a splendid gesture. But trust the mob to bungle the job. If I'd had charge of executing Christ, I'd have handled it differently. You see, what I'd have done was had him shipped to Rome and fed him to the lions. They could never have

made a savoir out of mincemeat!" (Rabbi Ben Hecht)

"There will burst forth one fine evening one of these formidable crises which will shake the earth and which occult societies have long prepared for Christian society, and then perhaps will suddenly appear in open day, throughout the entire world, all the militia, all the fraternal and unknown sects of the Cabala. The ignorance, the carelessness in which we live, of their sinister existence, their affinities, and their immense ramifications will in no way prevent them from recognizing each other, and under the banner of no matter what universal alliance, giving each other the kiss of Peace, they will hasten to gather together under one Chief ... " (Le Juif, Le Judaisme et La Judaisation des Peuples ChrÇtiens, Gougenot des Mousseaux (1869); The Trail of the Serpent, Miss Stoddard, p. 318).

"The day when the Jew was first admitted to civil rights, the Christian state was in danger...the entrance of the Jew into {White) society marked the destruction of the State, meaning by State, the Christian State." *(Benard Lazare, Antisemitism: Its History and Causes, P. 162).* 

## IF THE TRUTH BE KNOWN



CD 127 minutes [Listen to audio clip] \$16.00

Here you will find the ignored story of the massive deportations of the German peoples from Eastern Germany, Poland, the Baltic States, and the Sudetenland and its attendant horrors.

The entire library of many more audio programs is available as a bundle. All told, this is nearly 14 hours of great historical commentary! Plus, you realize a savings of \$20 dollars. For full details and to purchase go to the website:—

http://www.iftruthbeknown.net/index.php/about/

## **Eurofolk Radio**



## Is now on air!

24 hr streaming of items of interest to identity believers including live broadcasts on matters of national interest and much more!! TUNE IN NOW!

http://eurofolkradio.com/category/ge neral/



A wide range of Literature and rare book reprints in hard copy, reasonably priced, now available from the Christ's Assembly web site: http://christsassembly.com/literature.htm



WOW! IT'S

EUROFOLK

RADIO!

ukcolumn



http://www.youtube.com/user/ukcol



Pastor Eli James Sundays 16.00 hrs (British Summer time)

Live on Eurofolk Radio and Eurofolk YouTube - Tune in and join in the chat

http://eurofolkradio.com/category/general/

## Announcements



In The Name Of Yahwey auf Deutch - Für weitere Informationen, auf das Bild auf der rechten klicken Sie bitte

The Chronicles Of The Murations Of The Twelve Tribes Of Israel From The Caucasus Mountains Into Europe

The above PowerPoint presentation is available at Pastor Eli's website:

astor Eli James

## www.anglo-saxonisrael.com

Parts 1 - 6 plus a short introduction can now be viewed or downloaded the latest addition part 6 covers the German people in relation to the migrations of the Tribes of Israel.







Die Banker Satans Aktualisiert Erweitert Unzensier von Carrington Hitchcock, Andrew